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2. CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

The Issuer was incorporated under the British Columbia Company Act (the “Act”) on 
October 27, 1986 under certificate of incorporation number 316529.    
 
The full corporate name of the Issuer is “International Zimtu Technologies Inc.”  The 
Issuer’s head office, place of business and registered office is Suite 1450, 789 West Pender 
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6C 1H2.  The Issuer does not have any 
subsidiaries. 
 
The Issuer has not undergone a fundamental change, nor is it proposing an acquisition, 
amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement and as such, is not re-qualifying for 
quotation. 

3. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS 

Since incorporation in 1986, the Issuer has been engaged in the acquisition and exploration 
of natural resource properties.  In 1996, the Issuer acquired a 100% interest in and to certain 
mineral claims in the Nicola Mining District of British Columbia known as the AU Property.  
In 1999, the Issuer acquired the Comm, Aubyrd and Commerce claims in the Fort Steele 
Mining District of British Columbia.  As well, in 1999, the Issuer acquired a 100% interest in 
the internet privacy website known as www.siegesoft.com, which enabled the public to surf 
the internet without having personal and confidential information made available to 
marketers or data collectors.   
 
Due to the growth in www.siegesoft.com, and in accordance with the policies of the 
Canadian Venture Exchange (now known as the TSX Venture Exchange)(the “Exchange”), 
the Issuer underwent a change of business.  The Issuer transferred all of its mineral property 
interests to a subsidiary, Commerce Resources Corp. (“Commerce”), in order to focus solely 
on the internet privacy business.  Commerce became a public company in August, 2001 and 
currently trades under TSX-V stock symbol CCE.   In connection with the transfer of the 
mineral properties to Commerce, the Issuer received 1,000,000 special warrants which were 
subsequently converted into common shares of Commerce on the final receipt of 
Commerce’s prospectus.   
 
In May, 2001, the Issuer launched “SiegeSurfer”, a computer program which enabled 
anonymous internet surfing as well as improved script and cookie management.  Due to 
market conditions and the Issuer’s inability to attract a large enough consumer market to 
achieve profitability, the Issuer announced that it has decided to phase out the privacy 
service in July, 2002.    
 
On June 10, 2003, the Issuer entered into three Mineral Property Acquisition Agreements 
with geologist Jody Dahrouge for the purchase of three mineral properties, the Murray, 
Frank and Allan Lake Properties.  Each of the properties is located in the Gordon Lake area, 
northeast of Yellowknife, Northwest Territories.  Mr. Dahrouge received cash consideration 
of $13,200 for each property for reimbursement for the costs of staking and was granted a 
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1% net smelter royalty (“NSR”) and a 1% gross overriding royalty (“GOR”) on each 
property.   The Issuer has an option to purchase one half of each royalty for $500,000 each.   
 
On July 22, 2003, the Issuer entered into a Property Option Agreement with Providence 
Diamond Corp. (“Providence”), a Canadian Trading and Quotation System (“CNQ”) listed 
company pursuant to which Providence was granted an option to acquire a 70% interest in 
the Frank Property.  In consideration for the option, Providence paid the Issuer $17,000 
cash and issued the Issuer 200,000 special warrants, which were subsequently converted into 
common shares of Providence.  The Issuer also retained a 1% NSR and GOR on the Frank 
Property which Providence can purchase for $500,000 each.  In order to earn the 70% 
interest in the Frank Property, Providence is also required to incur exploration expenditures 
on the Frank Property of $50,000 on or before July 22, 2004, $50,000 on or before July 22, 
2005 and $150,000 on or before July 22, 2006.  The Issuer currently owns 277,500 common 
shares of Providence. 
 
The Issuer optioned a 70% interest in the Murray Property to Evolving Gold Corp. 
(“Evolving”) pursuant to a Property Option Agreement dated July 22, 2003.  Evolving is a 
reporting company in British Columbia, Alberta and Ontario and has received conditional 
approval to list on the CNQ.  The consideration paid for the interest in the Murray Property 
was $17,000 cash and the issuance of 200,000 special warrants to the Issuer, which were 
subsequently converted into common shares of Evolving.  The Issuer also retained a 1% 
NSR and GOR on the Frank Property which Providence can purchase for $500,000 each.  
Evolving is also required to incur exploration expenditures of $50,000 on or before July 22, 
2004, $50,000 on or before July 22, 2005 and $150,000 on or before July 22, 2006 in order to 
earn the 70% interest in the Murray Property.  The Issuer currently owns 277,500 common 
shares of Evolving.  
 
The Issuer optioned a 70% interest in the Allan Lake Property to Solex Gold Corp. (now 
known as Solex Resources Corp.)(“Solex”) pursuant to a Property Option Agreement dated 
July 22, 2003.  The consideration paid for the interest in the Allan Lake Property was 
$17,000 cash (paid) and the issuance of 200,000 special warrants (issued) of Solex to the 
Issuer.  Solex was also required to incur exploration expenditures of $50,000 on or before 
July 22, 2004, $50,000 on or before July 22, 2005 and $150,000 on or before July 22, 2006 in 
order to earn the 70% interest in the Allan Lake Property.  In a letter agreement between 
Solex and the Issuer dated March 1, 2004, Solex terminated its obligations under the Option 
Agreement with Issuer.   
 
The Issuer entered into a Property Purchase Agreement with Mr. Larry Sostad on January 
21, 2004 pursuant to which the Issuer purchased a 100% interest in and to 12 mineral claims 
located in the Greenwood Mining Division of British Columbia, more particularly known as 
the Louise Property.  Under the terms of the agreement, the Issuer is required to pay Mr. 
Sostad a total of $32,500 cash ($3,750 on the signing of the agreement (paid), $3,750 on or 
before July 21, 2004 and $25,000 on or before January 21, 2005), issue Mr. Sostad $40,000 
worth of common shares on January 21, 2005 and incur $50,000 of exploration expenditures 
on the Louise Property on or before August 31, 2005.  Mr. Sostad will retain a 2% NSR, of 
which the Issuer can purchase 1% of the NSR at any time for $1,000,000. 
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4. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 

 
Business Objectives 
 
The Issuer’s main business objective in the next twelve month period is to conduct mineral 
exploration on the Allan Lake Property to further define the mineralization potential of the 
Property.   
 
The Issuer is also focused on building shareholder value through ownership and investment 
in a diversity of early-stage mineral exploration properties and equity.  The Issuer has made 
equity investments in a number of public and private mineral exploration companies, such as 
Providence, Evolving and Solex, and intends to build shareholder value by distributing 
common shares of these companies to its own shareholders.  The Issuer has recently 
distributed common shares of each of Providence and Evolving to its shareholders as a 
dividend distribution.   
 
Significant Events and Milestones 
 
In order to complete the proposed business objectives above, the Issuer intends on 
completing an initial exploration program on the Allan Lake Property by October, 2004.  
Additional work on the Property will be contingent on successful results being obtained 
from this preliminary exploration program.  
 
The Issuer intends to distribute common shares of Solex to its shareholders once Solex 
becomes a reporting issuer.  
 
Funds available 
 
As at the Issuer’s most recent quarter ended November 30, 2003, the Issuer had cash on 
hand in the amount of $39,671 and a working capital deficit of $119,510.  As at May 31, 
2004, the most recent month end, according to a management prepared balance sheet, the 
Issuer had cash on hand in the amount of $6,164 and working capital of $235,045.   
 
Principal Purposes 
 
The principal purposes for which the funds available are intended to be used, in order of 
priority, are as follows: 
 

 Description Proceeds 

1. To pay the balance of the legal, audit and administrative 
costs associated with this listing. 

$10,000 

2. Initial exploration program on the Allan Lake Property $70,000 

3. Working capital to fund ongoing operations. $155,045 

 Total $235,045 
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Since the Issuer’s incorporation in 1986, the Issuer has not been the subject of a cease trade 
or similar order or became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to 
bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or 
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold 
the assets of the Issuer.  As well, the Issuer has not been the subject of any material 
reorganization and does not have asset-backed securities outstanding. 
 
Allan Lake Property 
 
The Issuer has a 100% interest in the Allan Lake Property, which consists of three mineral 
claims totalling 4,132 acres located immediately east of Allan Lake, within the south-central 
part of Northwest Territories.  Aurora Geosciences Ltd. was retained in June 2003 by the 
Issuer and Solex to complete an independent technical report on the Property in accordance 
with National Instrument 43-101 Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects (“NI 43-101”).  Mr. 
Gary Vivian, a principle of Aurora Geosciences Ltd. and a Qualified Person as defined in NI 
43-101, visited the Property and surrounding area during May, 2003.  The “Summary Report 
on the Allan Lake Property” dated August 7, 2003 was prepared for the Issuer and is 
described in more detail below.  A full copy of this report is available on www.sedar.com.  
 

“PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION 
 
The Allan Lake Property consists of three mineral claims totalling 4,132 acres located 
immediately east of Allan Lake, within the south-central part of Northwest Territories 
(Table 1).  The property is within National Topographic System Map Sheets 85I-14, 85I-
15 (Figure 1), about 75 km northeast of Yellowknife.  In January 2003, the claims were 
staked by Aurora Geosciences Ltd. on behalf of Jody Dahrouge.  Based upon an 
agreement dated June 10, 2003, the Allan Lake Property was purchased by Zimtu from 
Jody Dahrouge for a cash consideration of $13,200.00.  Based on a subsequent 
agreement dated July 22, 2003, Solex was granted the option to earn a 70% interest in 
the property from Zimtu.  To earn the interest, Solex must spend $300,000 on 
exploration prior to July 22, 2006, pay $17,000 and issue 200,000 special warrants of 
Solex to Zimtu.  Jody Dahrouge holds a 1% NSR on mineral production and a 1% 
GORR on diamond production from the property, of which one half of one per cent of 
the royalty can be repurchased for a cash consideration of $500,000. 
 

TABLE 1: LIST OF MINERAL CLAIMS, ALLAN LAKE PROPERTY 

Claim Name Tenure 
Number 

NTS 
Map Sheet(s) 

Record  
Date 

Anniversary 
Date 

Allan 1 F76057 85I/14 and 85I/15 2003-02-20 2005-02-20 

Allan 2 F76058 85I/14 2003-02-20 2005-02-20 

Allan 3 F76059 85I/14 and 85I/15 2003-02-20 2005-02-20 
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PROPERTY ACCESS, LOCAL RESOURCES AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
The Allan Lake Property, is located at the boundary between National Topographic 
System Map Sheets 85 I/14 and 85 I/15; on the east side of Allan Lake.  The property is 
approximately 83 km northeast of Yellowknife, NT.  In addition, it is about 40 km east 
of the Ingraham Trail and within about 12 km off the winter road to the Diavik and 
Ekati diamond mines. 
 
During summer months, access to the property is by either floatplane or helicopter.  
During winter months, access is by ski-equipped aircraft, helicopter or snowmobile.  
Yellowknife is the closest community and offers a complete range of supplies and 
services for the mineral exploration industry.  Previous exploration of the property has 
resulted in a number of campsites which can be revitalized as required. 
 
PHYSIOGRAPHY AND CLIMATE 
 
The physiography of the Allan Lake Property is typical of forested Canadian Shield 
terrain.  It is generally covered by a thick growth of stunted white and black spruce, 
white birch, poplar and jack pine with some intervening areas of muskeg.  Allan Lake is 
at approximately 275 meters above sea level, while the highest point on the property is a 
steep sided hill southeast of Hank Lake at 394 meters elevation.  The Cameron River 
Greenstone Belt, in which the Allan Lake Property lies, is fairly rugged with a number of 
shear cliffs and steep hills.  In adjacent areas, underlain by gneisses of the Sleepy Dragon 
complex and metasediments of the Burwash Formation, the terrain is less extreme. 
 
Permafrost underlies much of the property.  Freeze-up is most often in late October and 
break-up of a majority of the lakes in the region is most often in early June.  
Temperature extremes are typical sub-arctic Northern Canadian, hot summers; cool to 
cold, damp to wet spring and autumn; and cold dry winters.  Local temperatures range 
from + 30°C to -45°C.  
 
HISTORY 
The Cameron River area, within which the Allan Lake Property lies, has a documented 
history of exploration of about 70 years.  Exploration of the region is considered 
sporadic, with long periods of inactivity punctuated by a few months of intense 
exploration.  Documented exploration of the property and immediate vicinity is 
summarized in Table 2. 
 
GEOLOGICAL SETTING 
 
Regional Geology 
 
The Allan Lake Property is within the central portion of the Cameron River Greenstone 
belt and is underlain by rocks of the Burwash Formation, the Cameron River Volcanics 
and the Sleepy Dragon Complex (Figure 3).  Henderson (1985) and Lambert (1988) 
mapped the region at respective scales of 1:250,000 and 1:50,000 and each provides 
detailed reviews of the regional geology. 
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The Cameron River Volcanic Belt is one of approximately 26 major meta-volcanic 
systems of Archean age located within the Slave Structural Province (Figure 1).  It is an 
arcuate homoclinal succession of metavolcanic rocks comprised predominantly of highly 
deformed and metamorphosed pillowed and massive basalts.  The belt varies from a 
maximum width of about 4,200 meters and tapers to about 50 meters north of Upper 
Ross Lake and pinches out near Victory Lake.  The basalt flows are associated with lesser 
andesites and minor felsic tuffs, pyroclasics, ryholites, ryholitic breccias and flows.  Very 
few ultramafic rocks are known within the region and none occur within the vicinity of 
the Allan Lake Property. 

 
TABLE 2:  SUMMARY OF PRIOR WORK* 

Year Description of Work Documented 

Expenditures 

1930's-40's Gold first discovered near Yellowknife.  Work in the 40's primarily by 
Grubstake Syndicate, later by Gateway Gold Ltd  (Hawkins, 1988). 

- 

1941 Significant exploration is documented within the vicinity of Gordon Lake, 
which is less than 15 km due west of the Allan Claims (Lord, 1941). 

- 

1952-57 At the Allan Claims, five holes were drilled by Gateway Gold in 1952 and 
four by Pickle Crow Mines in 1957.  No drill logs remain from the work 
(Hawkins, 1988; p.8). 

- 

1959 At the Allan Claims, 47 diamond drill holes are completed by J.R. Woolgar 
on three zones.  Most of the drill logs and some of the core are available 
(Hawkins, 1988; p.8). 

- 

Early 1970's The Yellowknife Syndicate flew EM surveys over the Allan Claims for 
massive sulphide deposits (Hawkins, 1988; p.8). 

- 

1983-84 Mag/VLF-EM surveys completed by Ghost Lake Resources show linear 
geophysical anomalies associated with sheared felsic units.  Some old core 
is also relogged and VLF-EM and magnetometer surveys are conducted 
(Macdonald, 1984). 

$  33,318.00

1985 Henderson (1985) maps the Yellowknife-Hearne Lake Area at a scale of 
1:250,000. 

- 

1987 Aber Resources discovers polymetallic silver-base metal at Sunrise Lake, 25 
km east of Allan Lake (Hawkins, 1988). 

- 

1988 Durga Resources Ltd. completes a 411 km Dighem airborne 
magnetometer/VLF-EM survey at the Allan Claims and is followed-up by 
a field examination by Noranda Explorations (Hawkins, 1988).  Several 
samples were collected, including a 0.45 m chip sample with 44.95 g/t gold. 
A two-phased exploration program totaling $256,000 was recommended. 

  $  5,854.57
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Year Description of Work Documented 

Expenditures 

1988 Lambert (1988) maps the Cameron River and Beaulieu River Volcanic 
Belts at a scale of 1:50,000. 

- 

1990 Noranda Exploration Co. completes 1:1,000 scale mapping, sampling, 
magnetometer and MAX-MIN surveys of the Allan Claims.  In addition, 
143 rock and 375 humus samples were collected for assay. Although none 
are deemed significant, continued work, including drilling was 
recommended (Rees, 1990). 

$  43,593.00

1994 Essery (1994) conducts trenching at the Allan Claims, and collects four 
samples, with between 0.23 and 34.75 g/t gold. 

$  2,210.30

1996 Essery (1996) establishes further trenches within the vicinity of the 1994 
work, and exposes quartz veins and silica- flooded material.  Visible gold 
was noticed. 

$  2,880.00

* Modified after Hawkins (1988). 
° The term ‘Allan Claims’ refers to area represented by the present day Allan Claims. 

 
The Sleepy Dragon Shear zone, a 100 to 200 meters wide shear structure (Kusky, 1988) 
of intense deformation separates Cameron River Volcanics to the northwest from Sleepy 
Dragon complex to the southeast.  The Sleepy Dragon Complex is an approximate 3.0 
Ga basement complex of diorite, tonalite, granodiorite gneisses; with younger 
unmetamorphosed granodiorite-granite plutons that are not considered part of the 
Sleepy Dragon complex (Lambert 1988).  The Sleepy Dragon complex is approximately 
120 ma older than the unconformably overlying Cameron River metavolcanics.  This 
metamorphosed and deformed complex of heterogenous granitoid gneisses occupies an 
area roughly 25 km wide by about 45 km long, with its northwestern and western 
margins laying proximal to Cameron River.  The complex extends north and east, 
beyond the area of interest. 
 
The Cameron River Volcanic suite is conformably overlain by the Burwash Formation 
of the Yellowknife Supergroup. Burwash Formation rocks consist predominantly of 
interbedded greywacke-mudstone turbidites, which due to their relative incompetent 
nature, are typically complexly folded and faulted.  Burwash metasediments are 
characteristically uniform and without distinctive stratigraphic marker horizons, thus 
making the formation difficult to subdivide stratigraphically.  These highly deformed 
metasediments exhibit at least three phases of folding.  The northwestern part of the 
property, northwest of Allan Lake, is underlain by rocks of the Burwash Formation, 
which are host to gold mineralization at the Camlaren Mine, approximately 10 km 
northwest of Allan Lake. 
 
The apparent structural and stratigraphic simplicity of the Cameron River volcanics is 
deceiving (Lambert, 1988).  Extreme high-strain deformation of the belt against Sleepy 
Dragon Complex produced ”pseudo conformable relations within the volcanic belt and 
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between the eastern side of the volcanic belt and the granitic (gneissic) basement”.  The 
observed elongate deformation is primarily contact parallel with near vertical attitude. 
 
Within the region, mafic dykes and sills occur as isolated bodies and more commonly as 
extensive complex swarms.  Amphibolite dyke and sill swarms intrude the Sleepy 
Dragon Complex and Cameron River volcanics and are considered probable feeders for 
the pillow lavas of the Cameron River volcanics.  Regional geology displays pre-volcanic 
fault structures, as noted by faults near Webb and Patterson lakes.  These faults displace 
the Sleepy Dragon Complex but not the Cameron River volcanics.  Significant 
synvolcanic and extensive postvolcanic-syndeformational faulting and shearing further 
complicate the geology of the region.  In addition, late faults of probable Proterozoic 
age, and Proterozoic diabase and gabbroic dykes cut across basement, supracrustal and 
plutonic rocks. 
 
Hydrothermal alteration including silicification, quartz veining and silica flooding is a 
prominent feature within the Burwash Formation and the Cameron River Volcanics, and 
to a lesser extent within the Sleepy Dragon Complex.  No apparent comprehensive study 
of the regional alteration mineralogy or geochemistry has been completed.  Quartz 
veining is known to concentrate in areas of significant to subtle changes in large scale 
regional structural trends.  Descriptions from property reports of silicification and 
associated mineralization are available (Hawkins, 1989; Rees 1989; Essery 1994 and 
1996).  Gold mineralization within the region is associated with shear zones and quartz 
silica flooding with local concentrations of carbonate, pyrite, arsenopyrite, chalcopyrite 
with minor concentrations of stibnite, sulphosalts, sphalerite and galena. 
 
Property Geology 
 
The Allan Lake Property straddles the north-northeast trending Cameron River volcanic 
belt and is underlain to a minor degree, in the south and east, by the contact zone of the 
Cameron River Volcanics and Sleepy Dragon Complex (Figure 4).  Burwash Formation 
metasediments underlay the northwest corner of the property, west of Allan Lake 
(Henderson, 1940). 
 
Within the vicinity of Allan Lake, the Cameron River Volcanic suite is composed 
primarily of Cameron River Basalts (about 85%: flows, pillow lavas, volcrudites including 
the voluminous syn-post volcanic amphibolitic dykes and sills), Webb Lake Andesites 
(about 10%: pillowed lavas, breccias and volcaniclastic rocks), and minor ryholitic-dacitic 
flows, lentils and breccias.  All of these rocks have undergone extreme high-strain 
deformation, with metamorphic grades ranging from greenschist to amphibolite. 
 
Also included within the Cameron River volcanics are minor intercalated metasediments 
which are interpreted to represent deposition in periods of volcanic quiescence.  These 
sediments include black argillite and slates, quartzose siltstones, mafic tuffs, cherts and 
chert bearing or sulfide bearing, argillite-iron formations which overlie and interfinger 
with the volcanic rocks (Lambert, 1988).  
 
Detailed grid-scale geological mapping completed by Noranda Exploration Co. Ltd. 
(Rees, 1989) of portions of the current Allan Lake Property (Patterson, Alawux and 
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Allan grids) coupled with the report on property geology for Durga Resources by 
Hawkins (1989) summarize aspects of both volcanic host rocks and some aspects of 
mineralized alteration zones. 
 
The volcanic succession (basalts, amphibolites, andesites, rhyolites and minor sediments) 
has been deformed and is transected by northeast, generally suture parallel, chloritized, 
silicified, weak to high-sulfide bearing shear zones up to 25 meters wide.  Silicification as 
silica flooding and quartz veining is a pronounced feature of these rocks.  The silica 
alteration and associated arsenopyrite mineralization is common to all gold occurrences.  
MacDonald (1984), Hawkins (1989), Rees (1989), and Essery (1994 and 1996) refer to 
quartz veins, veining and silicification, while minimal information pertaining to 
geometry, alteration and mineralization are provided.  

As previously discussed, several generations of faulting and shearing occur within the 
region.  At the Allan Lake Property, most of the gold mineralization appears structurally 
controlled.  It is important to note, that at the Frank Property, about 15 km southwest of 
the Allan Lake Property,  (Nickerson, 1995, p. 3) 

”The best gold values are to be found close to the transverse faults where the highest 
sulphide concentrations also occur”. 

As indicated above, alteration and mineralization can be associated with a variety of 
cross-cutting structures.  At the property (Rees, 1989; p. 12), 

“numerous faults cut the volcanics subconcordantly…  ... faults are visible as 
retrograde chloritic schist zones from 0.5 to 2.0 m in width, although one is up to 15 
m in width.” 

The gold-bearing quartz vein at Ala Lake, strikes approximately 020° and dips about 22° 
east (Hawkins, 1989; p. 14).  Furthermore, Hawkins (1989, p. 34) indicates, 

”The structural framework of the property is not well understood ... ” 

DEPOSIT TYPE 
 
A vast majority of the known gold deposits within the Northwest Territories are within 
the Archean Slave Structural Province, where most metasediments and metavolcanics are 
between about 2.6 to 2.7 Ga and have been intruded by slightly younger granitic plutons.  
Within the Slave Province ”Auriferous quartz veins associated with shear zones, 
intersecting metasediments and metavolcanics rocks, host most of the gold deposits” 
(Beales et.al. 2002; p. 3).  Boyle (1979) provides detailed accounts of these deposit types, 
including an encompassing type which he terms: gold-silver and silver-gold veins, 
stockworks, lodes, mineralized pipes and irregular silicified bodies, in fractures, faults, 
shear zones, sheeted zones and breccia zones essentially in volcanic terranes. 
  
These deposits are widespread throughout, folded and relatively flat-lying volcanic 
terranes and are primarily of either Archean (Precambrian) or Tertiary age.  The host 
rocks for Archean deposits are commonly basalts, andesites, latites, trachytes and 
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rhyolites.  This assemblage is commonly referred to as ‘greenstone’ terrane, such as the 
Cameron River Greenstone Belt.  Most often the deposits are in tuffs, agglomerates and 
sediments, iron formations, interbedded with volcanic units.  In Archean terranes the 
rocks are generally regionally metamorphosed often exhibiting characteristic regional 
metamorphic facies outward from an igneous or granitized centre, such as the Sleepy 
Dragon Complex.  These greenstones generally show chloritization, though ‘unaltered’ 
rock is often encountered. 
 
Archean gold deposits often occur as veins or irregular mineralized masses, lodes, pipes 
and stockworks within highly fractured and sheared host rocks.  In Archean deposits, the 
veins and lodes are generally compact and the mineralogy is intergrown with 
recrystallization and replacement features including book and ribbon structures.  Quartz 
is the most prevalent gangue mineral, often displaying recrystallization features and a 
schistose to gneissic appearance.  The quartz is generally colourless, but may exhibit 
milky to white; with grey or black varieties often associated with carbonate alteration 
including calcite, dolomite and ankerite. 
 
Within Archean lode systems of this type, a gold to silver ratio of between 1 and 12 is 
common (Boyle, 1979).  Associated metallic minerals may include arsenopyrite, pyrite, 
argentiferous galena, sphalerite and chalcopyrite.  Pyrrhotite is common to Archean 
deposits.  As has been documented for the Allan Lake showings, wall rock alteration, 
common to Boyles classification includes: chloritization, carbonatization, sericitization, 
pyritization, arsenopyritization and silicification.  Archean systems are characterized by 
remarkably little vertical elemental zonation though at depth these Archean deposits can 
pass into barren quartz-carbonate with pyrite, pyrrhotite and minor base metal sulphide 
mineralization.  Deposits commonly retain the gold and silver grades observed at or near 
surface, to depth. 
 
There are numerous examples of this type of deposit in the greenstone belts of the 
Canadian Shield, including the Districts of Yellowknife, NT and other historic regions in 
Ontario, such as Crow River, Lake of the Woods, Red Lake, Porcupine and Kirkland 
Lake.  In the Yellowknife district, the Con and Giant Mines which are hosted by the 
Yellowknife Greenstone Belt, have produced approximately 14 million ounces of gold 
since 1938 (Miramar, 2002).  These deposits occur  as “lenses, veins, stockworks and 
silicified zones in extensive chlorite schist shear zones that intersect meta-andesites, 
basalts and dacites with interbedded pyritiferous slates and tuffs” (Boyle 1979, p.253).  
Elemental concentration commonly includes: Cu, Ag, Zn, Cd, Hg, B, Tl, Pb, As, Sb, Bi, 
V, Se, Te, S, Mo, W, Mn, Fe Co, Ni, CO2 and SiO2.  The author is of the opinion that 
this deposit type best represents the geology and elemental characteristics identified to 
date at the Allan Lake Property.  
 
MINERALIZATION 
 
At least four unique styles of mineralization are present at the Allan Lake Property, 
including: 
 

1) silicification with arsenopyrite, 
2) disseminated arsenopyrite, 
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3) sulfide iron-formation, and 
4) disseminated pyrite. 

 
Of the four types, only types 1 and 2, to date, have shown a pronounced association with 
gold. 
 
Type 1 mineralization at Allan Lake has shown the highest gold grades to be associated 
with quartz veins, vein sets or silicification intersecting ‘sulphide iron formation’, felsic 
porphyry, and/or metavolcanics.  Quartz is generally vitreous blueish-grey to white and 
massive through to bullish and vuggy with chlorite, pyrite, pyrrhotite, arsenopyrite and 
bismuth with or without minor galena.  Furthermore, a seemingly direct correlation 
between increasing arsenopyrite, decreasing pyrite and higher gold grades exists.  This 
type of mineralization is present at Ala Lake (Zone 1) and at the Earth Showing (Figure 
7). 
 
Type 2 mineralization, or disseminated sulfide in altered basalt can be associated with 
significant concentrations of gold.  This type of mineralization is present at Ala Lake 
(Zone 1) where (Hawkins 1989; p. 29) 
 

“A second sample of the hanging wall consisting of pillowed basalt (6016) with 5 - 
7% magnetite and disseminated aspy runs 9530 ppb Au or 0.278 oz/ton over a 0.45 
m chip sample.” 

 
Type 3 mineralization, or sulfide iron-formation carries up to 30 per cent sulfide; 
primarily pyrite and pyrrhotite with minor chalcopyrite and rarely arsenopyrite. These 
anomalously high-sulphide zones have consistently returned low gold values.  This type 
of mineralization was the main focus of the 1989 exploration by Noranda.  Although 
present at a number of locations throughout the property, Rees (1989, p. 21) concludes 

 
“The exploration target model used in the 1989 program, an iron formation hosted 
lode gold deposit may need re-evaluation...” 

 
Amongst other locations, this type of mineralization was noted on the Patterson Grid 
(Rees, 1989). 
 
Type four mineralization consists of a few to several per cent disseminated pyrite in well-
foliated to moderately-sheared, carbonate-altered basalts.  To date, this type of 
mineralization has consistently returned low gold values.  For example (Hawkins, 1988; 
p. 29), 
 

“chip sample over 3.3 m of a biotitized and silicified basalt (6037) with 5% po + py 
throughout returned <30ppb Au.  A second grab of sulfide and biotitized basalt with 
heavy sulfides (py + po) of 7-10% returned only 40 ppb Au.” 

 
A majority of prior exploration has focused on the mineral showings within the vicinity 
of Ala Lake, while (Rees, 1989; p. 21) 
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“Over a large part of the property little exploration has been done, but many mineral 
showings, in both gold and base metals, attest to the belt’s potential.” 

 
Descriptions of several of the most significant zones of mineralization follow. 
 
Ala Lake (Zone 1, Mindot) 
 
Located immediately north of the west end of Ala Lake, the Ala Lake Zone 1, or old 
Mindot showing, consists of a white to grey smoky quartz vein that is limited in strike 
length to about 100 m.  Although Hawkins (1989) indicates much of the vein may be 
poorly mineralized, a number of significant results have been reported for this location. 
 
According to Hawkins (1989, p. 14), the vein 
 

“Consists of high grade native gold associated with chalcopyrite, pyrite, arsenopyrite, 
native bismuth and malachite.  The vein averages about 35 cm in width and native 
gold occurs only in vitreous quartz closely associated with native bismuth.” 

 
Early chip samples produced values of 0.085 to 1.88 oz/ton gold over widths of 0.2 to 
0.4 meters (Lord,  1951).  More recent work resulted in surface chip and grab samples of 
44.94 g/t gold across 0.45 meters (quartz vein), 9.53 g/t across 0.45 meters (wallrock), 
and 4.40 and 31.99 g/t in grab samples (Hawkins, 1989).  In addition, a number of holes 
were completed at the Ala Lake showing by J.R. Woolgar in 1959, with the most 
significant results being 416 g/t gold across 0.4 meters, 24.3 g/t across 0.5 meters, and 
5.76 g/t across 1.8 meters from three quartz veins intersected in hole DDH 1 (Hawkins, 
1989). 
 
Ala Lake (Zone 2, Alawux Showing) 
 
The Alawux, or Ala Lake Zone 2 showing, is located on the northeast side of Ala Lake, 
about 200 m southeast of Ala Lake Zone 1.  The zone is a narrow, recessive, low, 
topographic linear, over 1 km in length, coincident within a magnetic high and a VLF-
EM conductor over a strike length of 2.5 km (Hawkins, 1989).  The area is underlain by 
massive and pillowed basalts with numerous gabbro sills (Rees, 1989).  Overlying and 
interfingered with the volcanics are sedimentary rocks that consist of chert, banded chert 
and argillite sulphide iron formation, black argillite, mafic tuff and quartz-rich siltstone.  
The sediments are in-turn overlain by pillowed basalts.  A felsic sill intrudes the central 
part of the showing. 
 
The main showing consists of a northeasterly striking zone,10 to 25 meters wide of 
sheared and altered metasediments and metavolcanics.  Alteration includes silificiation 
and chloritization.  Up to 30 per cent sulfide mineralization; including pyrite, pyrrhotite 
and arsenopyrite, with minor sphalerite and chalcopyrite; occurs along the footwall of 
the zone, and can occur over 1 to 2 meter thickness. 
 
Surface samples collected adjacent to the topographic linear returned low-grades of gold, 
with up to 560 ppb in an iron-formation and 360 ppb in the felsic sill.  In 1959, several 
shallow holes tested the eastern edge of the northerly trending linear, and a single hole 
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(DDH 33) tested the western part (MacDonald, 1984 and Rees, 1989).  Hole DDH 33, 
contained 10 g/t gold across 2 meters, and was the only hole to effectively test the target 
horizon (MacDonald, 1984).  According to Rees (1989, p. 21), 
 

“The best current target is the Alawux gold showing, which should be drill tested 
with 3 or 4 short (100 to 150 meters) holes, including re-drilling the 1959 hole (#33), 
which intersected 10 g/t over 2 meters.” 

 
Ala Lake (Zone 3) 
 
Zone 3 is along trend from Zone 2 on the southeast shore of Ala Lake, and may 
therefore represent its southwestern extension.  During 1989, Hawkins collected three 
samples from the zone, which is described as a series of quartz veins with massive 
arsenopyrite, sphalerite, and pyrite.  The three samples were of a silicified mafic volcanic, 
a mineralized quartz vein and a shallow dipping quartz vein; respectively returned 40 ppb 
gold, 8.19 g/t gold and 100 ppb gold. 
 
Earth Zone 
 
The Earth Zone, which was discovered in 1992 by Ray Essery (1994, 1996) and visited in 
the same year by John Brophy, District Geologist for the Department of Indian Affairs 
and Northern Development, consists of felsenmeer and some outcrop at the southwest 
corner of a northeasterly trending ridge.  This gabbroic material contains quartz-veins 
and silica-flooding with abundant acicular arsenopyrite.  This gabbroic material may be 
the surface expression of a larger zone that is covered by overburden to the northwest 
and southwest.  A select grab sample of arsenopyrite-rich material assayed 34.75 g/t gold 
(Brophy, 1993).  A second zone, about 30 m to the north-northeast, is from 0.60 to 2 
meters wide and can be traced for 23 meters along strike.  Two samples from the zone 
contained 230 ppb gold and 22.5 g/t gold.  According to Brophy (1993) 

 
“There are no signs of previous workings to suggest that these showings have been 
adequately evaluated.” 

 
EXPLORATION 
 
Prior exploration near Allan Lake has been summarized in the preceding section entitled 
“History”.  A number of shallow drill holes were completed at the property between 
about 1952 and 1959.  A ground geophysical program was completed in 1983, and an 
airborne geophysical survey in 1988.  In 1989, a 22-week program consisting mostly of 
ground geophysics and humus sampling was completed by Noranda Exploration 
Company Limited. The most recent exploration of the property includes a small amount 
of trenching and several rock samples collected in 1993 by Essery (1994). 
 
Geophysical Surveys 
 
Work on the Allan Lake Property through the 1980’s included significant geophysical 
surveys which have been successful in the delineation of conductors and magnetic 
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anomalies and outlining potential structural breaks and offsets in the aforementioned 
features.  The following section summarizes pertinent results. 
 
During the early 1970's the Yellowknife Syndicate had flown large EM surveys over the 
Cameron River area in the search for volcanogenic massive sulphide deposits (Hawkins, 
1989).  The details of these surveys are not available to the author.  The author is not 
currently aware of any earlier geophysical surveys completed on the property. 
 
A detailed VLF-EM /magnetometer survey was completed over much of the same 
ground in 1983 by Ghost Lake Resources Limited (Macdonald, 1984).  Grid survey work 
south of Ala Lake to the east shore of Hank Lake identified two very strong conductivity 
zones, these anomalies trend north-northeast parallel or sub-parallel to regional 
structure.  Macdonald (1984) provides a detailed interpretation of the 1983 survey data. 
 
In early 1988, Durga Resources Ltd. contracted Dighem to fly a 411 line km airborne 
VLF-EM/magnetometer survey which identified several magnetic highs with 
coincidental EM conductors (Hawkins, 1989).  An example of which would include the 
Alawux Showing conductors discussed above. The survey identified four general areas of 
interest based upon the occurrence of conductors and structural deformation evident 
from the geophysics.  The author is not aware if the original raw Dighem Data is 
available. 
 
Noranda (Rees, 1989) conducted an extensive program of ground geophysical surveys as 
a follow-up to the areas of interest defined by the 1988 Dighem Survey.  Three main 
grids were established to investigate targets at Alawux, Allan Lake and Patterson (Figure 
5).  Surveys included total field magnetics and horizontal loop / Max-Min geophysics. 
 
At the Alawux Grid, about 3.16 km of ground magnetics and 2.275 kilometers of Max-
Min were completed.  The survey identified zones of high magnetics and low resistivity 
interpreted as being ‘iron formation’. 
 
At the Allan Grid, along the northeast shore of Allan Lake, about 2.15 kilometers of grid 
was established.  Several zones of high magnetics were identified, and these zones may 
correlate with sulphide iron formation. 
 
At the Patterson Grid, due south of Ala Lake, about 3.875 line-km of ground magnetics 
and 2.150 line-km of Max-Min surveying were conducted.  Here, the magnetic data is 
discontinuous and may reflect podiform sulphide bodies.  Due to the considerable 
topographic relief the Max-Min program was marginally successful in locating 
conductors associated with sulphide iron formation. 
 
Geochemical  
 
Most early analysis from the property consisted of analysis from precious metals (gold 
and silver), with occasional analyses for base metals.  This includes most of the results 
from drilling and surface sampling completed during the 1950's, a few surface samples 
collected by Durga Resources (Hawkins, 1988), and several samples collected by Essery 
(1994). 
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Rock samples collected by Noranda in 1988 were analyzed for gold, arsenic, copper, lead 
and zinc.  A few of the analyses included arsenic and bismuth, though it does not appear 
that there was a thorough or consistent reason for the analytical methodology.  In 
addition, Noranda attempted a humus geochemical sampling program over the three 
grids in its1989 field program. Unfortunately minimal documentation exists as to 
sampling philosophy, methodology or sample descriptions. The humus was analyzed for 
gold only.  Most of the humus samples returned very low concentrations of gold, on the 
order of 5 ppb gold.  A few samples at the Alawux showing returned up to 120 ppb gold 
and were associated with recessive areas underlain by muskeg.  Noranda collected several 
samples for whole rock geochemistry for selected oxides (CaO, MgO, Na2O,K2O) across 
one of the target lineaments.  At best, the results were inconclusive (Rees, 1989).  No 
discussion as to the general purpose of the study was given.  
 
Very little work has been completed on the geochemistry of the known mineralized 
zones at the Allan Lake Property. 
 
Trenching 
 
Exploration pits and trenches are found scattered about the Allan Lake Property and 
much of the data to date is derived from sampling of these pits.  Detailed though 
spatially inaccurate, maps and diagrams of some of these occurrences are available in the 
referenced literature.  A number of pits are blasted into the Ala Lake Zone 1 and Zone 3, 
exposing mineralized quartz veins and wall rock.  A number of other pits occur 
throughout the property but are not well documented.  The most recent excavation on 
the property was a continuation of work on a showing excavated by Ray Essery in 1992.  
Brophy (1993) provides a sketch of the trench (Figure 7), which exposes auriferous 
quartz veins and silicified wall rock. 
 
DRILLING SUMMARY 
 
The only drilling at the property was during the 1950's when Gateway Gold Ltd. and 
Pickle Crow Mines Ltd. completed a few small drill programs.  In 1952, Gateway Gold 
Ltd. drilled five EX diameter diamond core holes.  There are no drill logs and only 
scattered core remains (Hawkins, 1989).  Subsequently in 1957, Pickle Crow Mines Ltd. 
of Toronto drilled four holes totalling 171.6 m.  No drill logs, accurate maps or assay 
certificates are available for this drill program.   
 
In the summer of 1959, Pickle Crow Mines Ltd. completed 47 EX diameter core holes 
with an average depth of less than 33 m, and a total of length 1525 m (Figure 6).  
Bateman (1959) provides most drill logs for this work and Hawkins (1989) indicates 
some of the core is still available for examination.  Of the 47 drill holes, 13 tested the Ala 
Lake Zone 1, 30 were completed at the Alawux (Zone 2) showing, and four were 
completed at Zone 3 (MacDonald, 1984).   
 
Results indicate the Zone 1 vein generally averages less than 0.25 ounces per ton gold 
over widths of less than 1 meter (MacDonald, 1984).  Significant drill results include 
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Hole DDH 1, which intersected three quartz veins, with 416 g/t (13.01 oz/t) gold across 
0.4 meters, 24.3 g/t across 0.5 meters and 5.76 g/t across 1.8 meters (MacDonald, 1984).  
 
Of the 47 holes drilled, 30 holes on the Alawux (Zone 2) showing were collared to the 
east of a “chloritized shear zone” and drilled at about 285° azimuth across the zone.  
Most tested the eastern edge of the northerly trending linear, and a single hole (DDH 33) 
tested the western part (MacDonald, 1984 and Rees, 1989).  Only Hole DDH 33 
contained significant mineralization with 10 g/t gold across 2 m, and was the only hole 
to intersect the hanging wall of the chloritized shear zone (MacDonald, 1984). 
 
Drilling on Zone 3 was disappointing with no significant returns.  Details of the drill 
program are available from Bateman (1959). 
 
SAMPLING METHOD, SECURITY AND ANALYSES 
 
Work to date by Solex Gold Corp., the current owner of the Allan Lake Property, has 
been restricted to a review of historic property workings and literature, including 
government geological reports (Brophy, 1993; Henderson, 1985; Lambert, 1988; and 
Lord 1941 and 1951), company assessment reports (Bateman, 1959; MacDonald, 1984; 
and Rees, 1989), and reports for submission to the Alberta Stock Exchange under 
National Policy No. 2A (Hawkins, 1989). 
 
Although the author was not directly involved in the prior exploration of the property 
and cannot comment on sample security, he is of the opinion that past exploration by 
Paul Hawkins, P.Eng. (1989) and by Matt Rees (1989) project geologist for Noranda, is 
of a very high quality.  Furthermore, both provide detailed information as to the 
sampling methodology for rock samples they collected.  Those collected by Hawkins 
(1989) were in support of a report prepared for the Alberta Stock Exchange under 
National Policy No. 2A.   
 
Samples collected by Hawkins (1989) were analysed for gold by Chemex Labs Ltd. of 
Vancouver, British Columbia, by standard Fire Assay.  Samples collected by Rees (1989) 
were analysed for gold by standard Fire Assay at Barringer Laboratories Ltd. and at Eco-
Tech Laboratories Ltd. 
 
DATA VERIFICATION 
 
As was previously discussed in the section entitled “Sampling Method, Security and 
Analyses” the author did not verify the results obtained by previous operators of the 
property.  However, he is of the opinion that the exploration by Hawkins (1989), which 
was in support of a report prepared for the Alberta Stock Exchange under National 
Policy No. 2A, verified the grades of gold mineralization previously obtained at the 
property by prior operators. 
 
ADJACENT PROPERTIES 
 
No information is included herein on adjacent properties, as no known significant 
mineralization is present on adjacent properties.  However, gold mineralization within 
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the region is discussed.  Mineralization encountered on the adjacent properties is 
not necessarily indicative of the mineralization on the Allan Lake Property and 
that an attempt has been made to clearly indicated that the mineralization (gold 
occurrences) presented herein are site specific within the confines of the Allan Lake 
Property. 
 
INTERPRETATION AND CONCLUSIONS 
 
Exploration of the Allan Lake Property is considered sporadic, with long periods of 
inactivity punctuated by a few months of intense exploration.  Since the discovery of 
auriferous quartz veins at the property in the early 1940's, three small drill programs were 
completed in the 1950's.  Several programs of geophysics in the 1970's and 1980's, and 
limited rock sampling during the late 1980's and mid 1990's have been completed.  This 
work resulted in the discovery of a least three (namely Ala Lake Zone 1, Alawux Zone 2 
and the Earth Zone) gold-bearing zones that indicate the Allan Lake Property has good 
potential for the discovery of significant gold mineralization.  The property remains 
under-explored for Archean greenstone-hosted gold deposits and is of sufficient merit to 
warrant further exploration. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

The favourable geologic setting and exploration completed upon the property to date 
provide sufficient merit to warrant further exploration.  A first stage exploration 
program (Table 3) is proposed as follows: 
 
a) complete a detailed compilation of existing property information combined with 

a review of aerial photographs to identify folds, breaks in structures, and 
structural trends.  Complete detailed 1:10,000 scale mapping and sampling of the 
property with an emphasis on the known mineralized showings and trends.  
During mapping and sampling, particular attention should be given to lithology, 
alteration and structure.  All sample analysis should include elements known to 
be associated with gold in these environments, and previously documented from 
this property. 

 
b) additional effort should be directed at exploring recessive horizons and shear 

zones such as that at Alawux Zone 2; exploration should include biogeochemical 
methods. 

 
c) In addition, hand-held or backpack GPS units should be used to accurately locate 

known showings, grids, drill holes and sample sites. 
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TABLE 3:  BUDGET FOR THE PROPOSED  
EXPLORATION OF THE ALLAN LAKE PROPERTY 

 
BUDGET ITEM ESTIMATED COST ($)

Project preparation and aerial photographic review $ 6,000.00 
Mobilization and Demobilization (4-persons) 14,000.00 
Field Work, Geologic Mapping, Sampling, Ground 
Geophysics(4-persons; 2 weeks) 

40,000.00 

Reporting 5,000.00 
Contingency 5,000.00 
Total Estimated Cost (Includes G.S.T.) $70,000.00 
 
A second phase of exploration would be contingent upon the successful results obtained 
from the first stage of exploration.  The second phases should include the proper 
delineation of anomalous zones using geophysical (mag, IP, EM) and possibly 
geochemical techniques.  Subsequent diamond drilling would be based upon these 
results.” 
 

The Issuer does not know of any trends, commitment, events or uncertainty that is expected 
to have a material effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations other 
than as disclosed herein. 

The Issuer does not have any oil and gas operations. 

5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The Issuer’s fiscal year end is February 28 and the following is a summary of the financial 
data of the Issuer for the last three completed fiscal year ends.   

 Fiscal Year ended February 28: 

 2003 2002 2001 

Total Revenues $20,215 $38,263 $42,085 

Income (loss) from continuing operations ($121,293) ($1,551,536) ($2,444,308)

Income from continuing operations (per share) ($0.00) ($0.01) ($0.01) 

Income from continuing operations (per share, fully diluted) ($0.00) ($0.01) ($0.01) 

Net Income (loss) from continuing operations ($121,293) ($1,551,536) ($2,444,308)

Net Income (loss) from continuing operations (per share) ($0.00) ($0.03) ($0.01) 

Net Income (loss) from continuing operations  
(per share, fully diluted) 

($0.00) ($0.03) ($0.01) 

Total assets $479,276 $484,071 $2,385,890 

Total long term financial liabilities - - - 

Cash dividend declared per share - - - 
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The Issuer has recently completed its fiscal year ended February 29, 2004 and its audited 
financial statements are currently being prepared.  The following is a summary of the eight 
most recently completed quarters: 
 

Quarter ended:  

November 
30, 2003 

August 31, 
2003 

May 31, 
2003 

February 28, 
2003 

November 
30, 2002 

August 
31, 2002 

May 31, 
2002 

February 
28, 2002 

Total Revenues Nil Nil Nil $20,215 Nil $12,607 $7,608 $7,447 

Income (loss) from 
continuing operations 

($54,429) ($91,538) ($62,776) ($7,600) ($38,917) $31,245 ($106,021) ($639,921)

Income (loss) from 
continuing operations 
(per share) 

($0.03) ($0.06) ($0.06) ($0.00) ($0.00) $0.00 ($0.00) ($0.00) 

Income from 
continuing operations 
(per share, fully diluted) 

($0.03) ($0.06) ($0.06) ($0.00) ($0.00) $0.00 ($0.00) ($0.00) 

Total assets $527,327 $435,497 $430,359 $479,276 $522,775 $526,954 $339,236 484,071 

 
The Issuer’s financial statements were not prepared using foreign GAAP. 
 
Dividend Policy 
 
The Issuer has not paid cash dividends in the past however, in August, 2001, the Issuer 
issued a dividend to its shareholders of record as of January 28, 2000 of 1,000,000 common 
shares of Commerce on the basis of 1 common share of Commerce for every 9.28 common 
shares held of the Issuer. 
 
On December 7, 2003, the Issuer announced that it intended to distribute common shares 
of three companies in which it holds an interest to the shareholders of the Issuer.  
Specifically, the Issuer will distribute to those shareholders holding 2,000 or more shares of 
the Issuer 1 common share of each of Providence, Evolving and Solex for every 4 common 
shares held of the Issuer of record as of December 15, 2003.  Shareholders residing in the 
United States of America and those shareholders holding less than 2,000 common shares of 
the Issuer will receive the cash equivalent equal to $0.01 for every 4 shares held of the Issuer. 
 
On June 2, 2004, the Issuer announced that it had received TSX Venture Exchange approval 
and was proceeding with the distribution of the common shares of Providence to its 
shareholders.  As well, on June 4, 2004, the Issuer announced that it had received TSX 
Venture Exchange approval and was proceeding with the distribution of the Evolving shares 
to its shareholders.  

6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The following is a summary of the results of operations, liquidity and capital resources of the 
Issuer for the last three fiscal year ends of the Issuer and to November 30, 2003.  Copies of 
the financial statements of the Issuer for the fiscal years ended February 28, 2001, February 
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28, 2002, February 28, 2003 and the nine month period ended November 30, 2003 are 
attached hereto as Schedule A. 
 
Results of Operations 
 
In December, 1999, the Issuer announced that it would undergo a change of name and 
business due to the growth in its internet privacy website www.siegesoft.com.  The change 
of business was eventually completed in May, 2001 and the Issuer became designated as an 
‘internet publisher’ by the TSX Venture Exchange.  In connection with the change of 
business of the Issuer, the Issuer sold its interest in its mineral properties to a subsidiary, 
Commerce Resources Corp.  
 
During the year ended February 28, 2001, there was an increase in share capital of $885,775 
due to a private placement equity financing and through the exercise of previously issued 
share purchase warrants.  Revenues of the Issuer increased from $1,910 to $35,105 and the 
net loss increased from ($717,991) to ($2,691,245) reflecting the Issuer’s increased 
investment in marketing and product development.  As well, administrative expenses 
increased from $688, 503 to $1,839,003 due to increased wages, travel, accounting and legal 
fees, product advertising and promotion.  For accounting purposes, the Issuer wrote down 
its investment in NetDive Inc. from $743,419 to $1.  As at the year ended February 28, 2001, 
the Issuer has positive working capital of $761,995. 
 
The Issuer launched www.siegesoft.com, a privacy and eCommerce website, in May, 2001.  
The website was aimed at providing end-use customers and small businesses with resources 
and solutions to many internet privacy and security issues.  Siegesurfer, software which 
enabled the internet user to ‘surf’ the internet anonymously, was also launched in May, 2001.  
The software also included improved script and cookie management.  In July, 2001, 
Commerce received a receipt for its preliminary prospectus from the British Columbia 
Securities Commission.   
 
In August, 2001, the common shares of Commerce commenced trading on the TSX 
Venture Exchange.  As a result of the initial offering of Commerce and other financings, the 
Issuer held 3,000,001 common shares of Commerce.  Subsequent to the commencement of 
trading of Commerce, the Issuer paid a dividend of 1,000,000 Commerce common shares to 
the Issuer’s shareholders.  
 
During the year ended February 28, 2002, revenues from sales decreased from $42,085 to 
$38,263.  The net loss decreased from ($2,691,245) to ($1,304,385) reflecting the prior 
investment in marketing and product development of the internet privacy software.  
Administrative expenses decreased from $1,742,284 to $1,183,131 due to a decrease in 
product advertising. 
 
Due to market conditions and the Issuer’s inability to attract a large enough customer market 
to achieve profitability, the Issuer decided to phase out the siegesurfer web browsing service 
and seek alternate opportunities and financing.  During the second quarter ended August 31, 
2003, the Issuer received shareholder approval of a consolidation of its common share 
capital on a 30 old shares for 1 new share basis as well as the change of name to 
International Zimtu Technologies.   
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During the year ended February 28, 2003, revenues from sales decreased from $38,263 to 
$20,215.  The net loss decreased significantly from $1,183,124 to $121,293 and 
administrative expenses decreased from $1,183,124 to $376,269.  The decrease in general 
and administrative expenses was a result of the winding-down of the internet privacy 
business as well as recovering administrative expenses from affiliated public companies with 
which the Issuer shares office premises.   
 
The Issuer received Exchange approval for the change of name and share consolidation.  
Effective April 4, 2003, the name of the Issuer was changed and the shares were 
consolidated on a 30 old shares for 1 new share basis.   
 
In June, 2003, the Issuer acquired a 100% interest in three mineral properties in the 
Northwest Territories for cash consideration of $39,600 ($13,200 each) and the grant of a 
1% Net Smelter Royalty and a 1% Gross Overriding Royalty.  The Issuer subsequently 
optioned a 70% interest in the properties, the Frank, Murray and Allan Lake Properties, to 
Providence, Evolving and Solex.  The consideration payable for each property was $17,000 
cash and the issuance of 200,000 special warrants, such special warrants to be converted into 
common shares of the private companies on receipt of a final prospectus from the 
applicable securities commissions. 
 
For the nine months ended November 30, 2003, the net loss was ($208,743) compared to a 
net profit of $12,764 for the comparable period in the previous fiscal year.  Administrative 
expenses for the nine months ended November 30, 2003 were $320,547 compared to 
$352,818 in the comparable prior fiscal period.  The Issuer had a working capital deficiency 
of $119,510.  The Issuer completed a private placement equity financing of $127,126 during 
the quarter ended November 30, 2003. 
 
Subsequent to the nine months ended November 30, 2003, Providence and Evolving both 
received receipts for their prospectus’ from the British Columbia, Alberta and Ontario 
securities commissions and became reporting issuers in those jurisdictions.  The special 
warrants issued to the Issuer from each of Providence and Evolving were converted into 
common shares of those companies.  Together with equity financings that the Issuer 
participated in with these two companies, the Issuer received a total of 677,501 common 
shares of each company.  The Issuer has recently completed a dividend distribution to its 
shareholders of approximately 400,000 common shares of each of Providence and Evolving.  
Currently, the Issuer has a total of 277,501 common shares in each of Providence and 
Evolving and retains a 30% interest in each of their properties.  As Solex terminated its 
option on the Allan Lake Property in March, 2003, the 100% interest in the property has 
thus remained with the Issuer.   The Issuer has participated in equity financings of Solex and 
currently holds 2,250,001 special warrants, which will be converted into common shares of 
Solex on Solex becoming a reporting issuer.  400,000 of those common shares will be 
distributed to the Issuer’s shareholders as a dividend.   
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
Since incorporation, the Issuer’s capital resources have been limited.  The Issuer has had to 
rely on the sale of equity securities for the cash required for capital acquisitions, exploration 
and development of mineral properties, and administration, among other things.   
 
The Issuer will continue to require funds to meet its obligations under the Louise Property 
Property Purchase Agreement.  As a result, the Issuer will have to continue to rely on equity 
and debt financing.  There can be no assurance that financing, whether debt or equity, will 
always be available to the Issuer in the amount required at any particular time or for any 
particular period or, if available, that it can be obtained on terms satisfactory to the Issuer.   

7. MARKET FOR SECURITIES 

The common shares of the Issuer were listed on the TSX Venture Exchange Inc. under 
stock symbol “ZUU”.  The Issuer delisted its common shares from the TSX Venture 
Exchange on June 17, 2004 and became listed for trading on the CNQ concurrent with the 
TSX Venture Exchange delisting. 
 
The Issuer currently does not have its securities listed and posted for trading or quoted on 
any other exchange or quotation system. 

8. CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

The following table details material changes to the share and loan capital of the Issuer from 
the fiscal year ended February 28, 2003 to the date of this Quotation Statement: 
 

Designation  
of Security 

Number  
authorized 

Outstanding as at 
February 28, 2003 

Outstanding as at 
November 30, 2003 

Outstanding as at 
June 15, 2004 

Common shares 300,000,000 31,261,815 2,274,198 2,462,479 

Options  -(1) Nil 57,000 238,000 

Share Purchase Warrants - Nil 1,059,138 1,116,416 
(1) Pursuant to the Issuer’s Stock Option Plan, the Issuer may grant stock options of up to 10% of the issued and 

outstanding share capital of the Issuer at that time. 

9. OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES 

As of the date hereof, the Issuer had a total of 238,000 incentive stock options outstanding 
broken down as follows: 

All executive officers and past executive officers Nil 
All directors and past directors 103,000 
All consultants and other employees  135,000 

10. PRIOR SALES 

The Issuer has one class of securities outstanding, common shares, of which 2,462,476 
common shares are issued and outstanding.  All of the common shares of the Issuer rank 
equally as to voting rights, participation in a distribution of the assets of the Issuer on a 
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liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Issuer and the entitlement to dividends.  The 
holders of the common shares are entitled to receive notice of all meetings of shareholders 
and to attend and vote the shares at the meetings.  Each common share carries with it the 
right to one vote. 

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Issuer or other distribution 
of its assets, the holders of the common shares will be entitled to receive, on a pro rata basis, 
all of the assets remaining after the Issuer has paid out its liabilities.  Distribution in the form 
of dividends, if any, will be set by the board of directors.   

The following table sets out the prices at which the Issuer’s common shares have been sold 
within the last twelve months: 

Date Number of Common Shares Price per security Total consideration 

June, 2003 434,147(1) $0.23 $99,853 

July, 2003 408,739(2) $0.23 $99,010 

October, 2003 254,252(3) $0.50 $127,126 

February, 2004 123,278(4) $0.90 $110,950 
(1) 434,147 units were issued on June 11, 2003 at a price of $0.23 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one 

common share and one non-transferable share purchase warrant which entitles the holder to purchase one 
additional common share of the Issuer at a price of $0.30 per share until June 11, 2005. 

(2) 408,739 units were issued on July 16, 2003 at a price of $0.23 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one 
common share and one non-transferable share purchase warrant which entitles the holder to purchase one 
additional common share of the Issuer at a price of $0.30 per share until July 16, 2005. 

(3) 254,252 units were issued on October 22, 2003 at a price of $0.50 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one 
common share and one non-transferable share purchase warrant which entitles the holder to purchase one 
additional common share of the Issuer at a price of $0.75 per share until October 22, 2005. 

(4) 123,278 units were issued on March 1, 2004 at a price of $0.90 per unit.  Each unit consisted of one 
common share and one non-transferable share purchase warrant which entitles the holder to purchase one 
additional common share of the Issuer at a price of $1.10 per share until March 1, 2006. 

 
Stock Exchange Price 
 
The Issuer was listed on the TSX Venture Exchange until June 17, 2004, when it delisted 
from the TSX and became listed on the CNQ.  The following is a summary of the average 
high and low price ranges and the volume traded on the TSX for the Issuer for the previous 
12 months: 

Month High Low Close Volume 

May, 2003 $0.42 $0.42 $0.42 21,518 

June, 2003 $0.48 $0.47 $0.47 42,427 

July, 2003 $0.69 $0.68 $0.69 18,450 

August, 2003 $0.70 $0.70 $0.70 7,834 

September, 2003 $0.70 $0.70 $0.70 40,121 

October, 2003 $0.75 $0.73 $0.74 176,332 
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Month High Low Close Volume 

November, 2003 $0.95 $0.93 $0.95 127,988 

December, 2003 $1.08 $1.05 $1.06 64,064 

January, 2004 $0.88 $0.86 $0.87 68,536 

February, 2004 $0.79 $0.78 $0.79 52,597 

March, 2004 $0.95 $0.94 $0.95 67,248 

April, 2004 $0.95 $0.95 $0.95 32,104 

May, 2004 $0.85 $0.84 $0.84 65,998 

11. ESCROWED SECURITIES 

As at the most recent quarter ended November 30, 2003, the Issuer had a total of 37,500 
common shares in escrow.  They have since been released and as of the date of this 
Quotation Statement, the Issuer has no securities held in escrow.   

12. PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS 

The Issuer does not have any shareholders that beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or 
exercise control or direction over, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights 
attached to all outstanding shares of the Company other than CDS Inc.  CDS Inc. is a 
securities depository into which brokerage houses deposit their securities. 

13. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

The following table sets out information regarding the directors and executive officers of the 
Issuer, including their respective positions and offices held and their respective principal 
occupations within the five preceding years: 

Name, Municipality of  
Residence and Position held 

 
Principal Occupation for the last 5 years 

 
Date Appointed

David I. Hodge 
Vancouver, British Columbia 

President and Director 

Director and President of the Issuer since 1996; Director 
and President of Commerce Resources Corp. since May, 
1999; Director and President of Solitaire Minerals Corp. 
from May, 2000 to May, 2002. 

July 1, 1996 

Shaun Ledding  
Vancouver, British Columbia 

Secretary and Director 

Director and Secretary of the Issuer since October, 1998; 
Director of Commerce Resources Corp. since October, 
2002; Director of Lateegra Resources Corp. from April, 
2002 to March, 2003; Director of Solitaire Minerals 
Corp. from July, 2001 to September, 2002; Director of 
Consolidated Excellerated Resources Corp. from 
October, 2001 to August, 2002 and from September, 
1999 to May, 2000. 

October 22, 
1998 
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Name, Municipality of  
Residence and Position held 

 
Principal Occupation for the last 5 years 

 
Date Appointed

Bruce Bragagnolo 
Vancouver, British Columbia 

Director 

Barrister and Solicitor since 1984; Director of the Issuer 
since October, 2003; Director of Amarillo Gold Corp. 
since June, 2003; Director of Cloudbreak Resources Ltd. 
since April, 2003; Director and Secretary of Continuum 
Resources Corp. since December, 1998; Director of 
Linux Gold Corp. since August, 2001. 

October 26, 
2003 

 
Directors of the Issuer are elected annually at the annual general meeting of the shareholders 
of the Issuer, and hold office until the next annual general meeting or until their successors 
are appointed.  David Hodge, Shaun Ledding and Bruce Bragagnolo are members of the 
Issuer’s audit committee.  
 
As a group, the directors and executive officers of the Issuer beneficially own, directly or 
indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, 408,116 common shares, which is 16.57% of 
the total issued and outstanding share capital of the Issuer. 
 
Corporate Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties, Sanctions and Conflicts of Interest 
 
The Issuer does not have any directors, officers or shareholders holding a sufficient number 
of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer who were the subject 
of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied the other Issuer access to any 
exemptions under applicable securities law, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days 
other than Shaun Ledding and Bruce Bragagnolo:  Mr. Ledding was a director of 
Consolidated Excellerated Resources Inc. in 2002 when it was cease traded for failing to file 
its audited financial statements.  The financial statements were sent out and the order was 
subsequently lifted.  Mr. Bragagnolo was a director of Montello Resources Ltd. in 1996 when 
Montello was suspended for one day for failure to file its annual questionnaire on time.  Mr. 
Bragagnolo is also a director of Amarillo Gold Corp., a NEX listed company which was 
halted from trading on May 21, 2004 pending a change of business/reverse takeover. 
 
The Issuer does not have any director, officers or shareholders holding a sufficient number 
of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer who within the 10 
years before the date of this Quotation Statement, become bankrupt, made a proposal under 
any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted any 
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager 
or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director or officer. 
 
The Issuer does not have any directors, officers or shareholders holding a sufficient number 
of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer who have been subject 
to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or 
by a Canadian securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with 
a Canadian securities regulatory authority.  
 
The Issuer does not have any directors, officers or shareholders holding a sufficient number 
of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer who have been subject 
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to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be 
likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision.  
 
There are no existing or potential material conflicts of interest between the Issuer or a 
subsidiary or the Issuer and a director or officer of the Issuer or subsidiary of the Issuer.   
 
Management of the Issuer 
 
We have a total of 2 persons performing management functions.  The persons forming our 
management team and our outside directors and their resumes are described briefly below. 
 
David Hodge 
Mr. Hodge, age 51, is the President and a Director of the Issuer.  In his role as President, 
Mr. Hodge is responsible for all aspects of the Issuer’s activities.  With his extensive 
experience with public companies, Mr. Hodge is an important leader in accomplishing the 
corporate objectives of the Issuer.  Mr. Hodge is contracted to the Issuer through a private 
British Columbia company, Core Development Corp., and devotes approximately 50% of 
his time on the affairs of the Issuer.  There is no non-competition or non-disclosure 
agreement between Mr. Hodge and the Issuer.   
 
Shaun Ledding 
Mr. Ledding, age 28, is the Vice President, Secretary and a Director of the Issuer.  Mr. 
Ledding received a Bachelor of Commerce (Finance) from the University of British 
Columbia in 1998.  Mr. Ledding is responsible for the day to day operations and 
management of the Issuer.  Mr. Ledding is also a Director of Commerce Resources Corp., a 
TSX-V listed company.  Mr. Ledding is an independent contractor and devotes 
approximately as much time as is required on the affairs of the Issuer.  There is no non-
competition or non-disclosure agreement between Shaun Ledding and the Issuer. 
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14. CAPITALIZATION 
 
The following table sets out the certain information regarding the share capitalization of the 
Issuer as at December 15, 2003.  The Issuer has one class of security: common shares. 

 
 

Issued Capital 

Number of 
Securities 

(non-diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 

(fully diluted) 

% of  
Issued  

(non-diluted) 

% of 
Issued 

(fully diluted) 

     

Public Float     

Total outstanding (A) 2,274,198 3,324,336 100% 100% 

Held by Related Persons or employees of the Issuer or Related 
Person of the Issuer, or by persons or companies who 
beneficially own or control, directly or indirectly, more than a 
5% voting position in the Issuer (or who would beneficially own 
or control, directly or indirectly, more than a 5% voting position 
in the Issuer upon exercise or conversion or other securities 
held) (B) 

611,389 1,145,275 26.88% 34.45% 

Total Public Float (A-B) 1,662,809 2,179,061 73.12% 65.55% 

     

Freely-Tradable Float     

Number of outstanding securities subject to resale restrictions, 
including restrictions imposed by pooling or other arrangements 
or in a shareholder agreement and securities held by control 
block holders (C) 

Nil Nil 0% 0% 

Total Tradable Float (A-C) 2,274,198 3,324,336 100% 100% 

     
Public Securityholders (Registered)     
Common Shares     
Size of Holding Number of Holders Total Number of Securities  

1-99 securities 81 2,562 

100-499 securities 22 3,602 

500-999 securities 2 1,300 

1,000-1,999 securities 8 11,237 

2,000-2,999 securities 24 49,282 

3,000-3,999 securities 0 0 

4,000-4,999 securities 20 80,000 

5,000 or more securities 33 2,063,283 
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Issued Capital 

Number of 
Securities 

(non-diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 

(fully diluted) 

% of  
Issued  

(non-diluted) 

% of 
Issued 

(fully diluted) 
Public Securityholders (Beneficial)     
Common Shares     
Size of Holding Number of Holders Total Number of Securities  

1-99 securities N/A N/A 

100-499 securities N/A N/A 

500-999 securities N/A N/A 

1,000-1,999 securities N/A N/A 

2,000-2,999 securities 63(1) 131,330 

3,000-3,999 securities 1(1) 3,876 

4,000-4,999 securities 3(1) 12,366 

5,000 or more securities 12(1) 201,641 

Unable to confirm N/A N/A 
     
Non-Public Securityholders (Registered)     
Common Shares     
Size of Holding Number of Holders Total Number of Securities  

1-99 securities 0 0 

100-499 securities 0 0 

500-999 securities 0 0 

1,000-1,999 securities 0 0 

2,000-2,999 securities 0 0 

3,000-3,999 securities 0 0 

4,000-4,999 securities 0 0 

5,000 or more securities 6 611,389 

(1) This information was based on board lot searches of the intermediaries conducted by the Issuer in April, 2004. 

As at the date of this Quotation Statement, the Issuer had the following securities 
exchangeable or convertible into common shares: 

Description of Security (include 
conversion/exercise terms, including 

conversion/exercise price) 

Number of 
convertible/exchangeable 

securities outstanding 

Number of quoted  
securities issuable upon 

conversion/exercise 

Share purchase warrants exercisable at a price of 
$0.30 per share until June 11, 2005 

354,147 share purchase 
warrants 

354,147 common shares 

Share purchase warrants exercisable at a price of 
$0.30 per share until July 16, 2005 

408,738 share purchase 
warrants 

408,738 common shares 

Share purchase warrants exercisable at a price of 
$0.75 per share until October 22, 2005 

230,252 share purchase 
warrants 

230,252 common shares 
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Description of Security (include 
conversion/exercise terms, including 

conversion/exercise price) 

Number of 
convertible/exchangeable 

securities outstanding 

Number of quoted  
securities issuable upon 

conversion/exercise 

Share purchase warrants exercisable at a price of 
$1.10 per share until March 1, 2006 

123,278 share purchase 
warrants 

123,278 common shares 

14. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Compensation of Directors 
 
Set out below are particulars of the compensation paid to the Named Executive Officers of 
the Issuer.  Named Executive Officers are: 

(a) the Issuer’s Chief Executive Officer, despite the amount of compensation of that 
individual; 

(b) each of the Issuer’s four most highly compensated executive officers, other than the 
CEO, who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most recently 
completed financial year and whose total salary and bonus exceeds $100,000 per year; 
and  

(c) any additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided under (b) 
but for the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer of the 
Issuer at the end of the most recently completed financial year. 

 
As at February 28, 2003, the end of the most recently completed fiscal period of the Issuer, 
the Issuer had one Named Executive Officer, David Hodge.  His position within the Issuer 
is set out in the summary of compensation table below. 

Summary of Compensation 
 
The following table is a summary of compensation paid to the Named Executive Officer for 
each of the Issuer’s three most recently completed fiscal years. 
 

Annual Compensation Long Term Compensation 

Awards Payouts 

 
 
Name and 
principle position 
of Named 
Executive Officer 

 
 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ending(1) 

 
 
 

Salary 

 
 
 

Bonus 

 
Other  
Annual 

Compensation

Securities Under 
Options / SARs(1) 

Granted 

Restricted Shares 
or Restricted 
Share Units 

 
LTIP(2) 

Pay-Outs

 
 
 

All  
Other  

Compensation

David Hodge 
President 

2003 
2002 
2001 

$13,000 
$39,000 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

$72,000 

Nil 
250,000 
250,000 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

(1) Stock Appreciation Rights. 
(2) Long term incentive plans. 
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Long-Term Incentive Plans, Options and SARs  
Awards in Most Recently Completed Fiscal Year 
 
During the most recently completed fiscal year, there were no incentive stock options and 
SARs (stock appreciation rights) granted to the Named Executive Officer.  The Issuer has 
no long-term incentive plans in place and therefore there were no awards made under any 
long-term incentive plan to the Named Executive Officer during the Issuer’s most recently 
completed fiscal year. A "Long-Term Incentive Plan" is a plan under which awards are made 
based on performance over a period longer than one fiscal year, other than a plan for 
options, SARs (stock appreciation rights) or restricted share compensation. 
 

Name Securities Under 
Options/SARs 

Granted (#) 

% of Total Options/SARs 
Granted to Employees in 

Fiscal Year 

Exercise or 
Base Price 

($/Security)

Market Value of Securities 
Underlying Options/SARs on 
the Date of Grant ($/Security) 

Expiration 
Date 

David Hodge Nil / Nil Nil / Nil N/A N/A N/A 

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises During the Most Recently  
Completed Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year End Option/SAR Values 
 
During the most recently completed fiscal year, there were no incentive stock options or 
SARs exercised by the Named Executive Officer. 
 

Name Securities 
Acquired on 
Exercise (#) 

Aggregate 
Value Realized 

(#)(1) 

Unexercised options  
at Fiscal Year End 

Exercisable/Unexercisable (#) 

Value of Unexercised In-the-Money 
Options(1) at Fiscal Year End ($) 

Exercisable/Unexercisable 

David Hodge Nil Nil Nil Nil 

(1) Based on the difference between the option exercise price and the closing market price of the Issuer’s shares, on the date of 
exercise.  In-the-Money Options are those where the market value of the underlying securities as at the most recent fiscal year end 
exceeds the option exercise price.  

Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts 
 
There are no other compensatory plans or arrangements with respect to the Named 
Executive Officer resulting from the resignation, retirement or other termination of 
employment or from a change of control of the Issuer. 

Compensation of Directors 
 
Compensation for the Named Executive Officer has been disclosed above. No cash 
compensation was paid to any director of the Issuer for the director’s services as a director 
during the fiscal period ended February 28, 2003. 
 
The Issuer has no standard arrangement pursuant to which directors are compensated by the 
Issuer for their services in their capacity as directors, except for the granting from time to 
time of incentive stock options.  During the most recently completed financial year, the 
Issuer did not grant any incentive stock options to directors. 
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15. INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

 
None of the Issuer’s directors, executive officers or their associates were indebted to the 
Issuer during the most recently completed financial year.   
 

Name and 
Principal 
Position  

(a) 

Involvement 
of Issuer or 
Subsidiary 

 (b) 

Largest Amount 
Outstanding [fiscal 

year end] ($) 
(c) 

Amount 
Outstanding as at 
[current date] ($) 

(d) 

Financially Assisted Securities 
Purchases During [fiscal year 

end] (#)  
(e) 

Security for 
Indebtedness 

(f) 

N/A      

16. RISK FACTORS 

 
The following is a summary of risk factors that are material to the Issuer: 
 
Exploration and Development:  The Property is in the exploration stage only and is 
without a known body of commercial ore.  Development of the Property will only follow 
upon obtaining satisfactory results.  Exploration and development of natural resources 
involve a high degree of risk and few properties which are explored are ultimately developed 
into producing properties.  There is no assurance that the Issuer’s exploration and 
development activities will result in any discoveries of commercial bodies of ore.  The long 
term profitability of the Issuer’s operations will be in part directly related to the cost and 
success of its exploration programs, which may be affected by a number of factors. 
 
Substantial expenditures are required to establish reserves through drilling, to develop 
processes to extract the resources and, in the case of new properties, to develop the 
extraction and processing facilities and infrastructure at any site chosen for extraction.  
Although substantial benefits may be derived from the discovery of a major deposit, no 
assurance can be given that resources will be discovered in sufficient quantities to justify 
commercial operations or that the funds required for development can be obtained on a 
timely basis. 
 
Operating Hazards and Risks:  Exploration for natural resources involves many risks, 
which even a combination of experience, knowledge and careful evaluation may not be able 
to overcome.  Operations in which the Issuer has a direct or indirect interest will be subject 
to all the hazards and risks normally incidental to exploration, development and production 
of resources, any of which could result in work stoppages, damage to persons or property 
and possible environmental damage.  Although the Issuer has or will obtain liability 
insurance in an amount which it considers adequate, the nature of these risks is such that 
liabilities might exceed policy limits, the liabilities and hazards might not be insurable against, 
or the Issuer might not elect to insure itself against such liabilities due to high premium costs 
or other reasons, in which event the Issuer could incur significant costs that could have a 
material adverse effect upon its financial condition. 
 
Fluctuating Prices:  The Issuer’s revenues, if any, are expected to be in large part derived 
from the extraction and sale of base and precious metals such as gold.  The price of those 
commodities has fluctuated widely, particularly in recent years, and is affected by numerous 
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factors beyond the Issuer’s control including international, economic and political trends, 
expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional 
consumptive patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to new extraction 
developments and improved extraction and production methods.  The effect of these factors 
on the price of base and precious metals, and therefore the economic viability of any of the 
Issuer’s exploration projects, cannot accurately be predicted. 
 
Environmental Factors:  All phases of the Issuer’s operations are subject to environmental 
regulation in the various jurisdictions in which it operates.  Environmental legislation is 
evolving in a manner which will require stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines 
and penalties for non-compliance, more stringent environmental assessments of proposed 
projects and a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and their officers, directors 
and employees.  There is no assurance that future changes in environmental regulation, if 
any, will not adversely affect the Issuer’s operations. 
 
Competition:  The resource industry is intensely competitive in all of its phases, and the 
Issuer competes with many companies possessing greater financial resources and technical 
facilities than itself.  Competition could adversely affect the Issuer’s ability to acquire suitable 
properties for exploration in the future. 
 
Options and Joint Ventures:  The Issuer may, in the future, be unable to meet its share of 
costs incurred under option or joint venture agreements to which it is a party and the Issuer 
may have its interest in the properties subject to such agreements reduced as a result.  
Furthermore, if other parties to such agreements do not meet their share of such costs, the 
Issuer may be unable to finance the cost required to complete recommended programs. 
 
Title to Assets:  Although the Issuer has or will receive title options for any concessions in 
which it has or will acquire a material interest, there is no guarantee that title to such 
concessions will be not challenged or impugned.  In some countries, the system for 
recording title to the rights to explore, develop and mine natural resources is such that a title 
opinion provides only minimal comfort that the holder has title.  Also, in many countries, 
claims have been made and new claims are being made by aboriginal peoples that call into 
question the rights granted by the governments of those countries. 
 
Political and Economic Instability:  The Issuer may be affected by possible political or 
economic instability.  The risks include, but are not limited to, terrorism, military repression, 
extreme fluctuations in currency exchange rates and high rates of inflation.  Changes in 
resource development or investment policies or shifts in political attitude in certain countries 
may adversely affect the Issuer’s business.  Operations may be affected in varying degrees by 
government regulations with respect to restrictions on production, price controls, export 
controls, income taxes, expropriation of property, maintenance of claims, environmental 
legislation, land use, land claims of local people, water use and mine safety.  The effect of 
these factors cannot be accurately predicted. 
 
Management:  The Issuer is dependent on a relatively small number of key employees, the 
loss of any of whom could have an adverse effect on the Issuer. 
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Exchange Rate Fluctuation:  The profitability of the Issuer may be adversely affected by 
fluctuations in the rate of exchange of Canadian dollars into U.S. dollars.  The Issuer does 
not currently take any steps to hedge against currency fluctuations. 
 
Requirement of New Capital:  As an exploration company without revenues, the Issuer 
typically needs more capital than it has available to it or can expect to generate through the 
sale of its products.  In the past, the Issuer has had to raise, by way of debt and equity 
financing, considerable funds to meet its capital needs.  There is no guarantee that the Issuer 
will be able to continue to raise funds needed for its business.  Failure to raise the necessary 
funds in a timely fashion will limit the Issuer’s growth. 
 
Value of Issuer:  The Issuer’s assets are of indeterminate value.  For further particulars see 
the financial statements scheduled hereto. 
 
Liquidity:  The common shares of the Issuer are subject to certain trade restrictions, which 
may include a one year hold period. 

17. PROMOTERS 

 
The Issuer does not have any written or verbal contracts or any other arrangement in effect 
with any person to provide promotional or investor relations services.   

18. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

 
There are no legal proceedings or pending legal proceedings to which the Issuer or the 
Property is or is likely to be a party to is subject. 

19. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND 
OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS 

David Hodge, President and a director of the Issuer, is contracted to the Issuer through 
Core Development Corp. a private company wholly owned by Shaun Ledding, also a 
director of the Issuer.  

20. AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS 

 
The auditor of the Issuer is Amisano Hanson, Chartered Accountants, located at Suite 604, 
750 West Pender Street, Vancouver, British Columbia. 
 
The transfer agent and registrar of the common shares of the Issuer is Computershare Trust 
Company of Canada, located at 4th Floor, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, 
V6C 3B9 
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21. MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

 
The following are the material contracts that the Issuer entered into within the previous two 
years: 

1. Mineral Property Acquisition Agreement dated June 10, 2003 between the Issuer and 
Jody Dahrouge regarding the Allan Lake Property; 

2. Mineral Property Acquisition Agreement dated June 10, 2003 between the Issuer and 
Jody Dahrouge regarding the Murray Property; 

3. Mineral Property Acquisition Agreement dated June 10, 2003 between the Issuer and 
Jody Dahrouge regarding the Frank Property; 

4. Property Option Agreement dated July 22, 2003 between the Issuer and Providence 
Diamond Corp. regarding the Frank Property; 

5. Property Option Agreement dated July 22, 2003 between the Issuer and Evolving 
Gold Corp. regarding the Murray Property; 

6. Property Option Agreement dated July 22, 2003 between the Issuer and Solex Gold 
Corp. regarding the Allan Lake Property; 

7. Property Acquisition Agreement dated January 21, 2004 between the Issuer and 
Larry Sostad regarding the Louise Property; 

8. Letter Agreement between the Issuer and Solex Resources Corp. dated March 1, 
2004 regarding the cancellation of Property Option Agreement. 

 
Further particulars of the above material contracts can be found under the previous section 
“General Development of the Business” (page 1). 

22. INTEREST OF EXPERTS 

 
Bruce Bragagnolo Law Corporation is the legal counsel for the Issuer.  Mr. Bragagnolo is the 
principal of Bruce Bragagnolo Law Corporation.  Bruce Bragagnolo Law Corporation 
currently holds 102,147 common shares of the Issuer which is equal to 4.15% of the issued 
and outstanding common shares of the Issuer.   
 
There is no direct or indirect interest in the property of the Issuer or of a Related Party of 
the Issuer received or to be received by a person or company whose profession or business 
gives authority to a statement made by the person or company and who is named as having 
prepared or certified a part of this Quotation Statement or a report or valuation included in 
this Quotation Statement. 
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24. OTHER MATERIAL FACTS 

 
There are no other material facts relating to the Issuer or its securities that have not been 
previously disclosed elsewhere in this Quotation Statement. 

25. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the fiscal years ended February 28, 2001, 
February 28, 2002, February 28, 2003 and the nine month period ended November 30, 2003 
are attached hereto as Schedule A. 
 
 
 



 

  

CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 
 
Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, International Zimtu 
Technologies Inc. hereby applies for the quotation of the above mentioned securities on 
CNQ. The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information 
relating to International Zimtu Technologies Inc.  It contains no untrue statement of a 
material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is 
necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the 
circumstances in which it was made. 
 
Dated at Vancouver, British Columbia this 15th day of June, 2004. 
 
 
“David Hodge” 
      
David Hodge 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
“Bruce Bragagnolo”     “Shaun Ledding” 
             
Bruce Bragagnolo     Shaun Ledding 
Director      Director 
 
 



Schedule “A” 
 
 

Audited financial statements of International Zimtu Technologies Inc. for  
the fiscal years ended February 28, 2001, February 28, 2002, February 28, 2003 

 and for the nine month period ended November 30, 2003. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 

(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 
 
 



 
AUDITORS� REPORT 

 
To the Shareholders of 
Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Zimtu Technologies Inc. (formerly Siegesoft 
Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.). as at February 28, 2001 and February 29, 
2000 and the consolidated statements of loss, deficit, resource properties and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Canada. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as at February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in Canada.  As required by the British Columbia Act, we report that, in our opinion, these 
principles have been applied on a consistent basis. 
 
 
Vancouver, Canada �AMISANO HANSON�
July 17, 2001 Chartered Accountants
 
 

TERRY AMISANO LTD. AMISANO  HANSON 
KEVIN HANSON, C.A. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

 SUITE 604 - 750 WEST PENDER STREET TELEPHONE: (604) 689-0188  
 VANCOUVER, CANADA FACSIMILE: (604) 689-9773  
 V6C 2T7 E-MAIL: amishan@telus.net  
 

mailto:amishan@istar.ca


SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 

 
 
 ASSETS 2001 2000 
Current   

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1,079,550  $ 3,085,615 
Accounts receivable  76,844 354,681 
Prepaid expenses 122,713 22,120 

       

 1,279,107 3,462,416 
Capital assets � Note 3 101,468 52,310 
Resource properties � Note 4 and Schedule 1 788,566 436,890 
Petroleum and natural gas prospect � Note 5 1 1 
Investment 1 - 
Siegesoft software � Note 6 17,285 46,917 
Siegesoft.com � Note 7 191,323 - 
Deferred charge 8,139 - 
       

  $ 2,385,890  $ 3,998,534 
       

LIABILITIES 
Current   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 55,107  $ 130,079 
Due to related parties � Note 9 - 71,648 
Advances payable 441,950 - 
Deposit 20,055 - 

       

 517,112 201,727 
       

SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY 
Share capital � Notes 4, 6 and 8 8,681,524 7,795,748 
Share subscriptions  - 122,560 
Contributed surplus 7,500 7,500 
Deficit  ( 6,820,246)  ( 4,129,001) 
       

 1,868,778 3,796,807 
       

  $ 2,385,890  $ 3,998,534 
       

Nature and Continuance of Operations � Note 1 
Commitments � Notes 4, 6, 8 and 10 
Subsequent Events � Note 13 
 
APPROVED BY THE DIRECTORS:   
   

�David Hodge�  �Shaun Ledding� 
 , Director   , Director
 



SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS 
for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 

 
 
 2001 2000 
   
Revenue  $ 35,105  $ 1,910 
       

Administrative Costs   
Accounting and legal 246,622 119,370 
Advertising and promotion 226,428 93,577 
Amortization 32,058 9,359 
Bank charges and interest 4,971 406 
Capital taxes - 9,000 
Consulting fees � Note 9 193,145 113,833 
Equipment rental 9,677 - 
Filing fees 36,483 20,359 
Investor relations 74,839 47,000 
Management fees � Note 9 - 60,000 
Office and miscellaneous 72,700 19,915 
Printing and shareholder information 7,089 18,747 
Product advertising 317,098 54,919 
Rent 67,153 30,092 
Sponsorship fees - 10,000 
Telephone 29,138 15,601 
Transfer agent 16,702 9,094 
Travel  105,565 47,731 
Wages � Note 9 399,335 9,500 

       

 1,839,003 688,503 
       

Loss before other items: 1,803,898 686,593 
Other items:   

Amortization of Siegsoft.com 63,775 - 
Amortization of Siegesoft Software 29,632 12,347 
Interest income  ( 73,173) - 
Write-off of investment in NetDive, Inc. 743,419 - 
Miscellaneous income  ( 2,148)  ( 2,815) 
Loss on write-off of resource properties � Note 4 74,999 48,145 
Property investigation costs � Note 9 50,843 9,549 
Gain on write-off of accounts payable -  ( 35,828) 

       

Net loss for year  $ 2,691,245  $ 717,991 
       

Loss per share  $ 0.12  $ 0.12 
       

 



SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF DEFICIT 
for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 

 
 
 2001 2000 
   
Deficit, beginning of the year  $ 4,129,001  $ 3,411,010 
   
Net loss for the year 2,691,245 717,991 
       

Deficit, end of the year  $ 6,820,246  $ 4,129,001 
       

 
 



SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 

 
 
 2001 2000 
Operating Activities:   

Net loss for the year  $ ( 2,691,245)  $ ( 717,991) 
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash:   

Amortization 32,058 9,359 
Amortizaton of Siegesoft.com 63,775 - 
Amortization of Siegesoft Software 29,632 12,347 
Write-off of investment in NetDive, Inc. 743,419 - 
Loss on write-off of resource properties 74,999 48,145 
Gain on write-off of accounts payable -  ( 35,828) 

    

  ( 1,747,362)  ( 683,968) 
Changes in non-cash working capital items related to 
 operations: 

  

Accounts receivable 277,837  ( 346,586) 
Prepaid expenses  ( 100,593)  ( 14,266) 
Deferred charge  ( 8,139) - 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  ( 74,972) 124,883 
Advances payable 441,950 - 
Deposit 20,055 - 

    

Cash used in operating activities  ( 1,191,224)  ( 919,937) 
    

Financing Activities:   
Issue of share capital for cash 870,776 4,264,572 
Share subscription advances - 122,560 
Share subscriptions utilized  ( 122,560)  ( 189,890) 
Advances from (repayment to) related parties  ( 71,648) 38,278 

    

Cash provided by financing activities 676,568 4,235,520 
    

Investing Activities:   
Increase in Siegesoft.com  ( 255,098) - 
Investment in NetDive, Inc.  ( 743,420) - 
Acquisition costs of mineral properties  ( 210,000)  ( 40,000) 
Deferred exploration and development costs  ( 201,675)  ( 96,423) 
Acquisition of capital assets  ( 81,216)  ( 49,994) 
Acquisition of Siegesoft Software -  ( 59,264) 

    

Cash used in investing activities  ( 1,491,409)  ( 245,681) 
    

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year  ( 2,006,065) 3,069,902 
   
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 3,085,615 15,713 
    

Cash and cash equivalents, at the end of year  $ 1,079,550  $ 3,085,615 
    

Non-cash Transactions � Note 11  



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

 ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Schedule 1 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RESOURCE PROPERTIES 
for the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 

 
     Verity     
 AU Aubyrd Comm Commerce and Fir Swan Oxford Other  
 Claims Claims Claims Claims Claims Hills House Claims Totals 

Balance, beginning 
 of year 

 
$ 315,371 

 
$ 45,759 

 
$ 45,760 

 
$ 30,000 

 
$ - 

 
$ - 

 
$ - 

 
$ - 

 
$ 436,890 

      

Acquisition costs          
Cash 40,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 - 75,000 50,000 - 210,000 
Shares - - - 15,000 - - - - 15,000 

      

 40,000 15,000 15,000 30,000 - 75,000 50,000 - 225,000 
      

Deferred Exploration 
and Development Costs 

         

Geological  
 consulting 

 
31,363 

 
2,515 

 
2,515 

 
2,515 

 
66,017 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
104,925 

Mapping 2,048 - 78 78 3,107 - - - 5,389 
Overhead 5,277 - - - 4,835 - 806 463 11,381 
Recording fees 2,080 2,154 2,154 2,154 4,750 - - 540 13,832 
Supplies and 
 miscellaneous 

 
6,019 

 
391 

 
391 

 
391 

 
5,027 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
12,219 

Travel 2,528 - - - 3,987 - - - 6,515 
Drafting - 37 37 37 37 - - - 148 
Labour - - - - 17,478 - - 6,676 24,154 
Helicopter - - - - 4,235 - - 18,877 23,112 

      

 49,315 5,175 5,175 5,175 109,473 - 806 26,556 201,675 
Less:  write-off of 
 resource property 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
 ( 74,999)

 
- 

 
- 

 
 ( 74,999) 

      

Balance, end of year $ 404,686 $ 65,934 $ 65,935 $ 65,175 $ 109,473 $ 1 $ 50,806 $ 26,556 $ 788,566 
      

 



 

 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 

 
 
Note 1 Nature and Continuance of Operations  
 

The Company is in the development stage and its common shares are listed on the 
Canadian Venture Exchange (�Exchange�). 
 
The Company�s businesses are the exploration of resource properties and the development 
and sale of a suite of Internet Privacy products through its website, www.siegesoft.com. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable to a going concern which assume that the Company will 
realize its assets and liabilities in the normal course of business.  Realization values may 
be substantially different from carrying values as shown in these financial statements 
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 

 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in Canada.  Because a precise determination of many assets 
and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of financial statements for a 
period necessarily involves the use of estimates which have been made using careful 
judgement.  Actual results may vary from these estimates. 
 
The financial statements, have in management�s opinion, been properly prepared within 
reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the significant accounting 
policies summarized below: 

 
a) Principles of Consolidation 

These financial statements include the accounts of Zimtu Technologies Inc. and its 
wholly-owned subsidiary, Commerce Resources Corp.  All inter-company transactions 
have been eliminated. 

 
b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank deposits maturing within 90 days 
from the original date of acquisition. 

 
c) Capital Assets and Amortization 

Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided using the declining 
balance method at the following annual rates: 

 
Furniture and fixtures 20%  
Computer equipment 30%  
Computer software 50% 



 
Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 � Page 2 
 

 

 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies � (cont'd)  
 

d) Investments 

Investment in companies not subject to significant influence are accounted for using 
the cost method.  If there is a decline in value, the investment is written-down to 
provide for the loss. 

 
e) Siegesoft Software and Siegesoft.com 

Siegesoft software and Siegsoft.com, a website, are recorded at cost and are amortized 
over 24 months on a straight-line basis. 

 
f) Resource Properties 

Resource properties are stated at cost.  The Company defers the costs of its exploration 
expenditures and carries them as assets until the results of the mining projects are 
known.  When a project is successful, the related costs and exploration expenditures 
are amortized over the life of the project on a unit-of-production basis.  If a project is 
unsuccessful, or if exploration has ceased because continuation is not economically 
feasible, the resource properties, as well as the related deferred exploration 
expenditures, are written-off. 
 
The recoverability of the amounts shown for resource properties are dependent on the 
success of the Company in determining the existence of economically recoverable 
reserves, securing and maintaining title and beneficial interest in the properties, the 
ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing to bring the reserves into 
production and upon future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of 
resource properties.   

 
g) Leases 

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  A lease that transfers substantially 
all of the benefit and risks incidental to the ownership of property is classified as a 
capital lease.  At the inception of a capital lease, an asset and an obligation are 
recorded at an amount equal to the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease 
payment and the property�s fair value at the beginning of the lease.  All other leases 
are accounted for as operating leases wherein rental payments are expensed as 
incurred. 

 
h) Fair Market Value of Financial Instruments 

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, due to related parties, advances payable and deposit 
approximate their fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments. 



 
Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 � Page 3 
 

 

 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies � (cont'd)  
 

i) Revenue Recognition 

The Company licenses under affiliate agreements.  Software revenue is recognized 
when the product has been shipped, no significant vendor obligations remain and when 
collection is considered probable. 

 
j) Loss Per Share 

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year. 

 
k) Stock-based Compensation 

The Company has a stock option plan which is described in Note 8.  No compensation 
expense is recognized for this plan when stock options are issued under this plan.  
Consideration paid on the exercise of the stock options is credited to share capital. 

 
Note 3 Capital Assets  
 

   Net Carrying Value 
  Accumulated February 28, February 29, 
 Cost Amortization 2001 2000 

Furniture and fixtures $ 60,638 $ 19,305 $ 41,333 $ 18,230 
Computer equipment 69,249 20,284 48,965 34,080 
Computer software 22,340 11,170 11,170 - 
             

 $ 152,227 $ 50,759 $ 101,468 $ 52,310 
             

 
Note 4 Resource Properties  

 
AU Claims 

Pursuant to an option agreement dated October 17, 1995, and subsequently amended on 
May 7, 1999, the Company acquired the right to earn a 100% interest, subject to a 2% net 
smelter returns royalty, in five mineral claims located in the Nicola Mining Division of 
British Columbia for consideration as follows: 
 
a) an initial payment of $151,750 (paid); 

b) payments to the optioners totalling $90,000 as follows: 

i) $20,000 on or before October 17, 1996 (paid); 

ii) $30,000 on or before October 17, 1997 (paid); 

iii) $40,000 on or before October 17, 1999 (paid). 



 
Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 � Page 4 
 

 

 
Note 4 Resource Properties � (cont�d) 

 
AU Claims � (cont�d) 

c) the issue of 379,629 common shares of the Company as follows: 

i) 50,000 common shares upon Exchange approval (issued at a price of $0.99 per 
share); 

ii) 50,000 common shares on the completion of an initial exploration program on the 
claims of $204,000 and a geological report recommending a second phase work 
program (issued at a price of $0.80 per share); 

iii) 129,629 common shares at a price of $0.27 per share for total consideration of 
$35,000 pursuant to the acquisition of the claims (issued); 

iv) 50,000 common shares on receipt of a geological report recommending a third 
phase work program of $400,000; 

v) 50,000 common shares on receipt of a positive feasibility study on the claims;  and 

vi) 50,000 common shares on commencement of commercial production. 

d) a commitment to incur a total of $204,000 of exploration and development costs on the 
claims on or before December 15, 1997 (incurred); 

 
Aubyrd Claims 

Pursuant to an option agreement dated May 3, 1999, the Company acquired the right to 
earn a 100% interest, subject to a net smelter royalty of 3%, in three mineral claims located 
in the Fort Steele Mining Division of British Columbia for consideration as follows: 
 
a) payments to the optioners as follows: 

i) $15,000 on or before June 30, 1999 (paid); 

ii) $15,000 on or before August 2, 2000 (paid). 

b) the issuance of 200,000 common shares as follows: 

i) 50,000 common shares upon acceptance by the Exchange (issued at a price of 
$0.20 per share);  and 

ii) 150,000 common shares of the Company or, at the option of the Company, 
150,000 common shares of Commerce Resources Corp. (�Commerce�) on or 
before the earlier of August 31, 2001 or 30 days after Commerce becomes a 
reporting issuer in accordance with the regulations of the Exchange.   

c) a commitment to incur exploration expenditures of at least $40,000 on or before 
August 31, 2001. 



 
Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Siegesoft Internet Solutions Inc. and formerly Rocca Resources Ltd.) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000 � Page 5 
 

 

 
Note 4 Resource Properties � (cont�d) 

 
Comm Claims 

Pursuant to an option agreement dated May 3, 1999, the Company has acquired the right to 
earn a 100% interest, subject to a net smelter royalty of 3%, in four mineral claims in the 
Fort Steele Mining Division of British Columbia for consideration as follows: 
 
a) payments to the optioners as follows: 

i) $15,000 on or before June 30, 1999 (paid);  and 

ii) $15,000 on or before August 2, 2000 (paid). 

b) the issuance of 200,000 common shares as follows: 

i) 50,000 common shares upon acceptance by the Exchange (issued at a price of 
$0.20 per share);  and 

ii) 150,000 common shares of the Company or, at the option of the Company, 
150,000 common shares of Commerce Resources Corp. (�Commerce�) on or 
before the earlier of August 31, 2001 or 30 days after Commerce becomes a 
reporting issuer in accordance with the regulations of the Exchange  

c) a commitment to incur exploration expenditures of at least $40,000 on or before 
August 31, 2001. 

 
Commerce Claims 

By an option agreement dated September 21, 1999, the Company acquired the right to earn 
a 100% interest in the Commerce claims located in the Fort Steele Mining Division of 
British Columbia for consideration as follows: 
 
a) payments to the optioner including: 

i) $10,000 on or before December 31, 1999 (paid); 

ii) $15,000 on or before September 21, 2000 (paid); 

iii) $25,000 on or before September 21, 2001; 

iv) $25,000 on or before September 21, 2002;  and 

v) $25,000 on or before September 21, 2003. 
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Note 4 Resource Properties � (cont�d) 

 
Commerce Claims � (cont�d) 

b) issuance of 200,000 common shares as follows: 

i) 50,000 shares upon acceptance of the agreement by the Exchange (issued at a 
price of $0.20 per share); 

ii) 50,000 shares upon the completion of the first phase of the exploration of the first 
phase of the exploration program (issued at a price of $0.30 per share); 

iii) 50,000 shares upon the completion of the second phase of the exploration 
program;  and 

iv) 50,000 shares upon the completion of the third phase of the exploration program 
on the property. 

 
Each of the issuances in ii), iii) and iv) above are subject to filing with the Exchange 
acceptable engineering or geological reports detailing the exploration work on the 
property in the previous phase and recommending further exploration or development 
of the property and subject to the approval of the Exchange to the issuance of such 
shares. 
 
The vendor will retain a 2% net smelter royalty. 

 
Verity and Fir Claims 

The Company acquired 7 mineral claims located in the Kamloops Mining District of 
British Columbia by incurring staking costs. 
 
Swan Hills 

The Company acquired an interest in an oil and gas lease in Alberta for $75,000.  During 
the year ended February 28, 2001, the Company recorded a write-down of $74,999 on this 
lease. 
 
Oxford House 

The Company acquired an exploration permit from the Province of Manitoba for $50,000. 
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Note 4 Resource Properties � (cont�d) 

 
Leonardo Oil Shale Property 

By a letter agreement dated February 1, 1999, the Company acquired the right to earn a 
100% interest in the Leonardo Oil Shale Property located in Mendoza Province, Argentina. 
 
During the year ended February 29, 2000, the Company abandoned the property and 
wrote-off all associated costs in the amount of $48,145. 
 

Note 5 Petroleum and Natural Gas Prospect 
 

The Company owns a 2.5% working interest in an oil lease located in the Province of 
Saskatchewan which is recorded at a nominal value of $1. 

 
Note 6 Siegesoft Software 
 

Pursuant to an agreement dated September 24, 1999, the Company acquired a 100% 
interest in internet privacy software and a website for a purchase price of US$40,000.  The 
Company has also agreed to issue 1,500,000 performance escrow shares to the vendor, the 
release which is subject to regulatory approval (subsequently issued). 

 
 2001 2000 

Siegesoft Software $ 59,264 $ 59,264 
Accumulated amortization  ( 41,979)  ( 12,347)
       

 $ 17,285 $ 46,917 
       

 
Note 7 Siegesoft.com 
 

 2001 2000 

Siegesoft.com $ 255,098 $ - 
Accumulated amortization  ( 63,775) - 
       

 $ 191,323 $ - 
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Note 8 Share Capital � Notes 4 and 6 
 

Authorized:   

30,000,000 common shares without par value   
   
Issued:      #         $     

Balance, February 28, 1999 2,856,649 3,407,076 
Issued for cash   
� Pursuant to the exercise of warrants � at $0.15 1,075,630 161,344 
 � at $0.17 172,667 29,353 
 � at $0.30 806,000 241,800 
 � at $0.31 238,709 74,000 
� Pursuant to a private placement � at $0.15 1,866,666 280,000 
 � at $0.22 1,375,000 302,500 
 � at $0.30 11,500,000 3,450,000 
Add:  agent�s shares 400,000 - 
Less:  issuance costs  (374,295)
 � at $0.31 322,161 99,870 
Pursuant to resource property acquisition agreements 
  � at $0.14

 
100,000 

 
14,000 

 � at $0.20 100,000 20,000 
 � at $0.27 129,629 35,000 
 � at $0.40 50,000 20,000 
Pursuant to an issuance of shares in settlement of debt 234,000 35,100 
       

Balance, February 29, 2000 21,227,111 7,795,748 
Issued for cash   
� Pursuant to the exercise of warrants  � at $0.30 194,000 58,200 
 � at $0.31 83,452 25,870 
 � at $0.40 129,900 51,960 
 � at $0.44 660,685 290,702 
� Pursuant to a private placement � at $0.30 1,000,000 300,000 

Less:  share issuance costs  - (5,956)
 � at $0.36 416,667 150,000 
Pursuant to a resource property purchase agreement 
 � at $0.30

 
50,000 

 
15,000 

       

Balance, February 28, 2001 23,761,815 8,681,524 
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Note 8 Share Capital � Notes 4 and 6 � (cont�d) 
 

Commitments 

Stock Options 

The Company has a stock option plan which authorizes the board of directors to grant 
shares as incentive stock options to directors, officers and employees.  The exercise price 
of the options is determined by the fair market value of the shares at the closing price on 
the date prior to date of the grant, all of which vest immediately.   
 
During the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000, the change in stock 
options outstanding is as follows: 
 
 2001 2000 
  Weighted  Weighted 
  Average  Average 
  Exercise  Exercise 
 Shares Price Shares Price 

Outstanding beginning of year - - - - 
Granted 2,200,000 $0.10 - - 
             

Options outstanding and 
 exercisable at end of year 

 
2,200,000 

 
$0.10 

 
- 

 
- 

             

 
As at February 28, 2001, stock options outstanding and exercisable to directors and 
employees are as follows: 
 

 Number Exercise Expiry  
 of Shares Price Date  

 2,050,000 $0.10 January 25, 2003  
 150,000 $0.15 January 25, 2003  
     

 2,200,000    
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Note 8 Share Capital � Notes 4 and 6 � (cont�d) 
 

Commitments � (cont�d) 

Warrants: 

At February 28, 2001, the following share purchase warrants were outstanding entitling the 
holders the right to purchase one common share for each warrant held: 

 Number Exercise Expiry  
 of Warrants Price Date  

 714,315 $0.10 December 9, 2001  
 416,667 $0.40 January 5, 2002  
 1,000,000 $0.10 February 23, 2002  
     

 2,130,982    
     

 
Note 9 Related Party Transactions 
 

During the years ended February 28, 2001 and February 29, 2000, the Company incurred 
the following expenses with directors and officers of the Company: 

 
 2001 2000 

Consulting fees  $ 36,350  $ 57,450 
Management fees  - 60,000 
Property investigation costs 3,500 - 
Wages 228,088 1,000 
   

  $ 267,938  $ 118,450 
   

 
The charges were measured by the exchange amount which is the amount agreed upon by 
the transacting parties and are on terms and conditions similar to non-related entities. 
 
Amounts due to related parties consist of advances owing to directors of the Company, are 
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no specific terms of repayment. 

 
Note 10 Commitments 
 

The future minimum rental payments required under operating leases having initial or 
remaining lease terms in excess of one year are summarized as follows: 
 

 Year ended February 28, 2002 $ 56,913  
 2003 45,443  
   

  $ 102,356  
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Note 11 Non-cash Transactions 
 

Investing and financing activities that do not have a direct impact on current cash flows are 
excluded from the cash flow statements.  The following transactions have been excluded 
from the cash flow statements: 

 
During the year ended February 28, 2001: 

- the Company issued 50,000 common shares at a price of $0.30 per share pursuant to a 
resource property acquisition agreement. 

 
During the year ended February 29, 2000: 

- the Company issued 234,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share pursuant to 
an agreement to settle debts for shares. 

- the Company issued 379,629 common shares at prices ranging from $0.14 to $0.40 
pursuant to resource property acquisition agreements. 

 
Note 12 Corporation Income Tax Carryforwards 
 

The Company has accumulated non-capital losses totalling $2,373,297 which are available 
to offset against future years taxable income.  These losses expire as follows: 

 
 2007 $ 676,778  
 2008 1,696,519  
      

  $ 2,373,297  
      

 
The Company has an accumulated capital loss of $74,999, which can be used indefinitely 
to reduce future year�s capital gains. 

 
The Company has also accumulated Canadian Development Expenses of $ $861,913 and 
Canadian Exploration Expenses of $1,142,742.  These expenses carry forward indefinitely 
and are available to offset against certain future years� taxable income at various rates per 
year. 
 
The potential tax benefit of these losses and expenses, if any, have not been recorded in the 
financial statements. 
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Note 13 Subsequent Events 
 

Subsequent to February 28, 2001: 

a) The Company�s subsidiary Commerce filed a preliminary prospectus for a company 
sponsored initial public offering of 1,250,000 common shares at $0.20 per share and 
9,942,750 common shares and 4,442,750 warrants issuable upon the exercise of 
9,942,750 previously issued special warrants.  The final prospectus is subject to 
regulatory approval. 

 
Upon final regulatory approval, the Company intends to issue as a dividend, 1,000,000 
shares of its subsidiary, Commerce to its shareholders. 

 
After the completion of the above-mentioned transactions, the Company will own less 
than 20% of the common shares of Commerce.  Consequently, Commerce will be 
accounted for using the cost method of accounting. 

 
b) The Company issued 7,500,000 performance escrow shares at $0.01 per share.  These 

escrow shares are to be released in stages over various intervals of time. 
 

c) The Company received $25,000 from the Province of Manitoba in respect to a refund 
on a Oxford House exploration permit. 

 
Note 14 Comparative Figures 
 

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year 
presentation. 
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SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
BALANCE SHEETS 

February 28, 2002 and 2001 
 
 
 ASSETS 2002 2001 
Current   

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 2,820  $ 1,079,550 
Marketable securities 109,925 - 
Accounts receivable – Note 12 37,264 76,844 
Prepaid expenses 8,421 122,713 

       

 158,430 1,279,107 
Capital assets – Note 3 72,838 101,468 
Resource properties  - 788,566 
Due from related parties – Note 8 82,028 - 
Investment in Commerce Resource Corp. – Note 4 90,000 - 
Siegesoft software – Note 5 - 17,285 
Siegesoft.com – Note 6 63,775 191,323 
Other assets - 8,141 
       

  $ 467,071  $ 2,385,890 
       

LIABILITIES 
Current   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 97,869  $ 55,107 
Advances payable 45,179 441,950 
Deposit - 20,055 

       

 143,048 517,112 
       

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Share capital – Note 7 8,756,524 8,681,524 
   
Contributed surplus 7,500 7,500 
Deficit  ( 8,440,001)  ( 6,820,246) 
       

 324,023 1,868,778 
       

  $ 467,071  $ 2,385,890 
       

Nature and Continuance of Operations – Note 1 
Commitments – Notes 7 and 9 

APPROVED BY THE DIRECTORS:   
   
   

“Shaun Ledding”  “David Hodge” 
 , Director   , Director 
 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
STATEMENTS OF LOSS 

for the years ended February 28, 2002 and 2001 
 
 
 2002 2001 
   
Revenue  $ 38,263  $ 42,085 
       

Administrative Costs   
Accounting and legal 82,642 227,343 
Advertising and promotion 114,807 204,089 
Amortization 40,276 31,949 
Bank charges and interest 1,935 4,573 
Consulting fees – Note 8 249,230 188,005 
Equipment rental 15,845 9,677 
Filing fees 1,500 20,973 
Investor relations 101 74,839 
Office and miscellaneous 32,617 64,249 
Printing and shareholder information 9,804 7,089 
Product advertising 127,362 317,098 
Rent 55,314 51,665 
Repairs and maintenance 4,709 - 
Telephone 50,134 27,655 
Transfer agent 4,745 16,702 
Travel  - 97,043 
Wages – Note 8 392,103 399,335 

       

 1,183,124 1,742,284 
       

Loss before other items:  ( 1,144,861)  ( 1,700,199) 
Other items:   

Amortization of Siegesoft.com  ( 127,548)  ( 63,775) 
Amortization of Siegesoft Software  ( 32,285)  ( 29,632) 
Interest income 30,437 60,759 
Write-off of investment in NetDive, Inc. -  ( 743,419) 
Miscellaneous income 21,764 34,168 
Property investigation costs – Note 8 -  ( 2,210) 
Loss on write-down of investment in Commerce Resource 
 Corp. 

 
 ( 299,043) 

 
- 

       

Loss from continuing operations  ( 1,551,536)  ( 2,444,308) 
Eanrings (loss) from discontinued operations – Note 14 247,151  ( 246,937) 
       

Net loss for year  $ ( 1,304,385)  $ ( 2,691,245) 
       

Loss per share from continuing operations  $ ( 0.03)  $ ( 0.11) 
       

Loss per share from discontinued operations  $ ( 0.01)  $ ( 0.01) 
       

Basic and diluted loss per share  $ ( 0.04)  $ ( 0.12) 
       

 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
STATEMENTS OF DEFICIT 

for the years ended February 28, 2002 and 2001 
 
 
 2002 2001 
   
Deficit, beginning of the year  $ ( 6,820,246)  $ ( 4,129,001) 
   
Net loss for the year  ( 1,304,385)  ( 2,691,245) 
Dividends  ( 315,370) - 
       

Deficit, end of the year  $ ( 8,440,001)  $ ( 6,820,246) 
       

 
 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

for the years ended February 28, 2002 and 2001 
 
 
 2002 2001 
Operating Activities:   

Loss from continuing operations for the year  $ ( 1,551,536)  $ ( 2,691,245) 
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash:   

Amortization 40,276 32,058 
Amortizaton of Siegesoft.com 127,548 63,775 
Amortization of Siegesoft Software 32,285 29,632 
Write-off of investment in NetDive, Inc. - 743,419 
Loss on write-off of resource properties - 74,999 
Loss on write-down of investment in Commerce Resource 
 Corp. 

 
299,043 

 
- 

       

  ( 1,052,384)  ( 1,747,362) 
Changes in non-cash working capital items related to 
 operations: 

  

Accounts receivable  ( 10,442) 277,837 
Prepaid expenses 51,159  ( 100,593) 
Deferred charge  ( 16,373)  ( 8,139) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 42,762  ( 74,972) 
Advances payable  ( 192,184) 441,950 
Deposit 19,945 20,055 

       

Cash used in operating activities  ( 1,157,517)  ( 1,191,224) 
       

Investing Activities:   
Investment in marketable securities - - 
Increase in Siegesoft.com -  ( 255,098) 
Investment in NetDive, Inc. -  ( 743,420) 
Acquisition costs of mineral properties -  ( 210,000) 
Deferred exploration and development costs -  ( 201,675) 
Acquisition of capital assets  ( 14,450)  ( 81,216) 
Acquisition of Siegesoft Software - - 

       

Cash used in investing activities  ( 14,450)  ( 1,491,409) 
       

Financing Activities:   
Issue of share capital for cash 60,000 870,776 
Special warrants subscribed - - 
Share subscriptions utilized -  ( 122,560) 
Advances from (repayment to) related parties 158,125  ( 71,648) 
Advanced from Commerce Resource Corp. - - 

       

Cash provided by financing activities 218,125 676,568 
       

 
 

…/Cont’d. 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

 ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Continued 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

for the years ended February 28, 2002 and 2001 
 
 
 2002 2001 
   
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year from 
 continuing operations  ( 953,842)  ( 2,006,065) 
Cash flow from discontinued operations – Note 13  ( 122,888) - 
   
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year  ( 1,076,730)  ( 2,006,065) 
   
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 1,079,550 3,085,615 
       

Cash and cash equivalents, at the end of year  $ 2,820  $ 1,079,550 
       

Supplemental Cash-flow Information – Note 10  



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC.. Schedule I 
STATEMENTS OF LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

for the years ended February 28, 2002 and 2001 
 
 
 2002 2001 
Operating Expenses   

Accounting and legal  $  27,950  $ 19,278 
Advertising and promotion 64,859 22,339 
Amortization 1,239 109 
Bank charges and interest 701 398 
Consulting fees 13,285 5,140 
Filing fees 4,302 15,510 
Management fees - 39,000 
Office and miscellaneous 9,445 8,451 
Printing and shareholder information 12,929 - 
Rent 19,563 15,488 
Telephone 755 - 
Transfer agent 340 1,482 
Travel 23,818 8,523 

       

Loss before other items  ( 179,186)  ( 135,718) 
Other items   

Interest income 4,785 12,413 
Property investigation costs  ( 6,809)  ( 48,633) 
Write-down of resource property -  ( 74,999) 

       

Loss from discontinued operations  $ ( 181,210)  $ ( 246,937) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Note 1 Nature and Continuance of Operations  
 

The Company is in the development stage and its common shares are listed on the TSX 
Venture Exchange (“Exchange”). 
 
The Company’s business is the development and sale of a suite of Internet Privacy 
products through its website, www.siegesoft.com. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable to a going concern which assume that the Company will 
realize its assets and liabilities in the normal course of business.  Realization values may 
be substantially different from carrying values as shown in these financial statements 
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 
 
The Company has accumulated losses of $8,440,001 since inception.  The Company’s 
ability to meets its obligations and maintain operations is contingent upon the completion 
of additional financing arrangements, joint venture payments and/or attaining future 
profitable operations or from proceeds form the sale of assets. 

 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies  
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles.  Because a precise determination of many assets 
and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of financial statements for a 
period necessarily involves the use of estimates which have been made using careful 
judgement.  Actual results could vary from these estimates. 
 
The financial statements, have in management’s opinion, been properly prepared within 
reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the significant accounting 
policies summarized below: 

 
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank deposits maturing within 90 days 
from the original date of acquisition. 

 
b) Marketable Securities 

Marketable securities are carried at the lower of cost and quoted market value. 
 

c) Capital Assets and Amortization 

Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided using the declining 
balance method at the following annual rates: 

 
Furniture and fixtures 20%  
Computer equipment 30%  
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Computer software 50% 
 

d) Investments 

Investment in companies not subject to significant influence are accounted for using 
the cost method.  If there is a decline in value, the investment is written-down to 
provide for the loss. 

 
e) Siegesoft Software and Siegesoft.com 

Siegesoft software and Siegsoft.com, a website, are recorded at cost and are amortized 
over 24 months on a straight-line basis. 

 
f) Resource Properties 

Resource properties are stated at cost.  The Company defers the costs of its exploration 
expenditures and carries them as assets until the results of the mining projects are 
known.  When a project is successful, the related costs and exploration expenditures 
are amortized over the life of the project on a unit-of-production basis.  If a project is 
unsuccessful, or if exploration has ceased because continuation is not economically 
feasible, the resource properties, as well as the related deferred exploration 
expenditures, are written-off. 
 
The recoverability of the amounts shown for resource properties are dependent on the 
success of the Company in determining the existence of economically recoverable 
reserves, securing and maintaining title and beneficial interest in the properties, the 
ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing to bring the reserves into 
production and upon future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of 
resource properties.   

 
g) Leases 

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  A lease that transfers substantially 
all of the benefit and risks incidental to the ownership of property is classified as a 
capital lease.  At the inception of a capital lease, an asset and an obligation are 
recorded at an amount equal to the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease 
payment and the property’s fair value at the beginning of the lease.  All other leases 
are accounted for as operating leases wherein rental payments are expensed as 
incurred. 
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – (cont'd)  
 

h) Financial Instruments 

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, consisting of cash and 
cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable, due from related parties, 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and advances payable approximate their fair 
value due to the short-term maturity of such instruments.  Unless otherwise noted, it is 
management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, 
currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. 

 
i) Revenue Recognition 

Software revenue is recognized when the product has been shipped, no significant 
vendor obligations remain and when collection is considered probable. 

 
j) Loss Per Share 

Loss per share amounts have been calculated and presented in accordance with the 
new recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.  The new 
standard has been applied on a retroactive basis and had no impact on the amounts 
previously reported.   
 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the loss for the year by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted 
earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if potentially dilutive 
securities were exercised or converted to common stock.  The dilutive effect of options 
and warrants and their equivalent is computed by application of the treasury stock 
method and the effect of convertible securities by the “if converted” method.  Fully 
diluted amounts are not presented when the effect of the computations are anti-dilutive 
due to the losses incurred.  Accordingly, there is no difference in the amounts 
presented for basic and diluted loss per share. 

 
k) Income Taxes 

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company retroactively has adopted the asset and 
liability method of accounting for income taxes, following new standards 
recommended by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”).  The 
effect of adopting the standards was not considered significant and did not impact 
amounts reported in prior years.  Under this method, current income taxes are 
recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current period.  Future 
income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the 
tax and accounting basis of assets and liabilities as well as for the benefit of losses 
available to be carried forward to future years for tax purposes only if it is more likely 
than not that they can be realized. 
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Note 3 Capital Assets  
 

  2002   2001 
  Accumulated    
 Cost Amortization Net  Net 

Furniture and fixtures $ 61,223 $ 27,631 $ 33,592  $ 41,333 
Computer equipment 66,336 34,023 32,313  48,965 
Computer software 36,205 29,272 6,933  11,170 
              

 $ 163,764 $ 90,926 $ 72,838  $ 101,468 
              

 
Note 4 Investment in Commerce Resource Corp. 
 

Investment in Commerce Resource Corp. (“Commerce”) consists of 1,998,001 common 
shares of Commerce representing a 13% interest thereof.  Of these shares, 1,098,000 have 
been classified as marketable securities as at February 28, 2002 and have been written-
down to their quoted market value. 
 
The remaining 900,001 shares of Commerce are classified as Investment in Commerce 
Resource Corp., a long-term asset and are recorded at their quoted market value.  These 
shares are held in escrow by the Company’s transfer agent and will be released on a 
percentage basis every six months in the fiscal year commencing March 1, 2003. 

 
Note 5 Siegesoft Software 
 

Pursuant to an agreement dated September 24, 1999, the Company acquired a 100% 
interest in internet privacy software and a website for a purchase price of US$40,000.   

 
 2002 2001 

Siegesoft Software $ 74,264 $ 59,264 
Accumulated amortization  ( 74,264)  ( 41,979) 
       

 $ - $ 17,285 
       

 
Note 6 Siegesoft.com 
 

 2002 2001 

Siegesoft.com $ 255,098 $ 255,098 
Accumulated amortization  ( 191,323)  ( 63,775) 
       

 $ 63,775 $ 191,323 
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Note 7 Share Capital  
 

a) Authorized: 

300,000,000 common shares without par value 
 

b) Issued: Number     $     

Balance, February 29, 2000 21,227,111 7,795,748 
Issued for cash   
– Pursuant to the exercise of warrants  – at $0.30 194,000 58,200 
 – at $0.31 83,452 25,870 
 – at $0.40 129,900 51,960 
 – at $0.44 660,685 290,702 
– Pursuant to a private placement – at $0.30 1,000,000 300,000 

Less:  share issuance costs  - (5,956) 
 – at $0.36 416,667 150,000 
Pursuant to a resource property purchase agreement 
 – at $0.30 

 
50,000 

 
15,000 

       

Balance, February 28, 2001 23,761,815 8,681,524 
Issued for cash   
– pursuant to an escrow agreement – at $0.01 6,000,000 60,000 
Pursuant to an agreement to issue escrow shares for a 
  software acquisition – at $0.01 

 
1,500,000 

 
15,000 

       

Balance, February 28, 2002 31,261,815 8,756,524 
       

 
c) Escrow  

At February 28, 2002, 5,625,000 common shares are held in escrow by the Company’s 
transfer agent. 
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Note 7 Share Capital – (cont’d) 
 

Commitments 

Stock Options 

The Company has a stock option plan which authorizes the board of directors to grant 
shares as incentive stock options to directors, officers and employees all of which vest 
immediately.  The exercise price of the options is determined by the market value of the 
shares at the closing price on the date prior to date of the grant.   
 
During the years ended February 28, 2002 and 2001, the changes in stock options 
outstanding are as follows: 
 
 2002 2001 
  Weighted  Weighted 
  Average  Average 
  Exercise  Exercise 
 Shares Price Shares Price 

Outstanding beginning of year 2,200,000 $0.10 - - 
Granted - - 2,200,000 $0.10 
             

Options outstanding and 
 exercisable at end of year 

 
2,200,000 

 
$0.10 

 
2,200,000 

 
$0.10 

             

 
As at February 28, 2002, stock options outstanding and exercisable to directors and 
employees are as follows: 
 

 Number Exercise Expiry  
 of Shares Price Date  

 2,050,000 $0.10 January 25, 2003  
 150,000 $0.15 January 25, 2003  
       

 2,200,000    
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Note 8 Related Party Transactions 
 

During the years ended February 28, 2002 and 2001, the Company incurred the following 
expenses with directors and officers of the Company: 

 
 2002 2001 

Consulting fees  $ 37,912  $ 36,350 
Property investigation costs - 3,500 
Wages 257,000 228,088 
       

  $ 294,912  $ 267,938 
       

 
The charges were measured by the exchange amount which is the amount agreed upon by 
the transacting parties and are on terms and conditions similar to non-related entities. 
 
Amounts due from related parties, consisting of advances owing from directors of the 
Company and companies with a common director, are unsecured, non-interest bearing and 
have no specific terms of repayment. 

 
Note 9 Commitments 
 

The future minimum rental payments required under operating leases having initial or 
remaining lease terms in excess of one year are $45,443. 

 
Note 10 Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
 

a) Non-cash Transactions: 

Investing and financing activities that do not have a direct impact on current cash 
flows are excluded from the cash flow statements.  The following transactions have 
been excluded from the cash flow statements: 

 
During the year ended February 28, 2002: 

- the Company issued 1,500,000 common shares at $0.01 per share for total 
consideration of $15,000 in respect to the acquisition of Siegesoft Software. 

- the Company distributed to its existing shareholders a dividend in kind of 
1,000,000 common shares of Commerce valued at $315,370. 

 
During the year ended February 28, 2001: 

- the Company issued 50,000 common shares at a price of $0.30 per share pursuant 
to a resource property acquisition agreement. 
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Note 10 Supplemental Cash Flow Information – (cont’d) 
 

b) Cash Paid For: 

 2002 2001 

Interest  $ -  $ - 
Income taxes  $ -  $ - 

 
Note 11 Corporation Income Tax Carryforwards 
 

The Company has accumulated non-capital losses totalling $3,852,664 which are available 
to offset against future years taxable income.  These losses expire as follows: 

 
 2007 $ 647,887  
 2008 2,154,777  
 2009 1,050,000  
      

  $ 3,852,664  
      

 
The Company has accumulated a capital loss of $745,177, which can be used indefinitely 
to reduce future year’s capital gains. 
 
The potential tax benefit of these losses, if any, have not been recorded in the financial 
statements. 

 
Note 12 Comparative Figures 
 

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year 
presentation. 

 
Note 13 Discontinued Operations 

 
On August 15, 2001, the Company disposed of the majority of its interest in Commerce.  
The Company transferred all of its interest in mineral properties and contributed cash in 
exchange for special warrants of Commerce.  Commerce completed its own initial public 
offering (“IPO”) and became a publicly listed company, at which time the special warrants 
were exchanged for 3,000,000 shares of Commerce.  As a result of the offering and other 
financings, the Company’s interest in Commerce was diluted to 32% at the effective date 
of IPO.  Details of the dilution, are as follows: 
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Note 14 Discontinued Operations – (cont’d) 

 
Net Assets of Commerce Resources Ltd. at date of dilution  
Cash  $ 122,888 
Other current assets  113,280 
Capital assets, at fair market value  14,289 
Mineral properties and deficient costs, at book value  1,210,748 

     

  1,461,205 
Less:  liabilities  (256,072) 

     

  $ 1,205,133 
     

Pro rata value of interest retained by the Company (32%) $ 387,009 
Value of shares acquired  815,370 
     

Gain on dilution of interest  $ 428,361 
     

 
The results from discontinued operations are summarized as follows.  Results for 2002 are 
up to August 15, 2001: 
 
 2002 2001 

General and administrative expenses $ ( 185,994) $ ( 259,350) 
Less:  interest income 4,784 12,413 

       

Loss from operations  ( 181,210)  ( 246,937) 
Gain on dilution of interest 428,361 - 

       

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations $ 247,151 $ ( 246,937) 
       

 
Net assets of discontinued operations are summarized as follows: 
 
 2002 2001 

Cash $ - $ 417,285 
Other assets - 38,003 
Capital assets - 2,804 
Mineral properties and deferred costs - 796,706 
Current liabilities -  ( 117,146) 

       

 $ - $ 1,137,652 
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Note 14 Discontinued Operations – (cont’d) 

 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from discontinued operations are as follows.  Results for 2002 are up to August 
15, 2001: 
 2002 2001 

Loss from discontinued operations $ ( 181,210) $ ( 246,937) 
Less non-cash item - amortization 14,289 109 
Changes in discontinued operations non-cash working capital 
 balances consist of: 

 
 

Accounts receivable  ( 42,277)  ( 7,746) 
Prepaid expenses  ( 48,000)  ( 15,258) 
Accounts payable  ( 8,778) 8,778 
Advances payable  ( 235,858) 94,061 
Deposit 19,945 20,055 
Due to related parties -  ( 15,000) 

       

Cash used in operating activities  ( 481,889)  ( 161,938) 
       

Investing activities   
Acquisition and deferred costs of mineral properties  ( 414,192)  ( 481,336) 
Acquisition of capital assets  ( 25,774)  ( 2,913) 

       

Cash used in investing activities  ( 439,966)  ( 484,249) 
       

Financing Activities   
Issue of share capital for cash 612,458 - 
Share subscriptions received - 1,063,472 
Advanced from related parties 15,000 - 
       

Cash provided by financing activities 627,458 1,063,472 
       

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the 
 period 

 
 ( 294,397) 

 
417,285 

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 417,285 - 
       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 122,888 $ 417,285 
       

 
Immediately subsequent to the IPO of Commerce, the Company paid a dividend consisting 
of 1,000,000 shares of Commerce having a cost of $315,370.  As a result, the Company’s 
interest in Commerce was further decreased to 13%.  
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AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
To the Shareholders of 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 

We have audited the balance sheets of International Zimtu Technologies Inc. (formerly Zimtu 
Technologies Inc.) as at February 28, 2003 and 2002 and the statements of loss, deficit and cash flows 
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Company as at February 28, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations and cash flows for 
the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  As 
required by the British Columbia Act, we report that, in our opinion, these principles have been applied 
on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. 
 
 
Vancouver, Canada “AMISANO HANSON”
July 14, 2003 Chartered Accountants
 
 

TERRY AMISANO LTD. AMISANO HANSON 

KEVIN HANSON, CA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

750 WEST PENDER STREET, SUITE 604 TELEPHONE: 604-689-0188 
VANCOUVER CANADA FACSIMILE: 604-689-9773 
V6C 2T7 E-MAIL: amishan@telus.net 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 

BALANCE SHEETS 
February 28, 2003 and 2002 

 
 
 ASSETS 2003 2002 
Current   

Cash   $ 42,917  $ 2,820 
Marketable securities 125,010 125 
Advances receivable  22,499 70,391 
GST receivable  13,472 31,864 
Prepaid expenses 6,087 8,421 

    

 209,985 113,621 
Capital assets – Note 3 51,910 72,838 
Due from related parties – Note 7 76,221 34,037 
Investment in Commerce Resource Corp. – Note 4 141,160 199,800 
Siegesoft.com – Note 5 - 63,775 
    

  $ 479,276  $ 484,071 
    

LIABILITIES 
Current   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 162,167  $ 97,869 
Advances payable 50,179 60,179 
Due to related parties – Note 7 64,200 2,000 

    

 276,546 160,048 
    

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Share capital – Notes 6 and 14 8,756,524 8,756,524 
   
Contributed surplus 7,500 7,500 
Deficit  ( 8,561,294)  ( 8,440,001) 
    

 202,730 324,023 
    

  $ 479,276  $ 484,071 
    

Nature and Continuance of Operations – Note 1 
Commitments – Notes 6 and 9 
Subsequent Events – Note 14 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY THE DIRECTORS:   
   
   
   

“Shaun Ledding”  “David Hodge” 
 , Director   , Director
 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 

STATEMENTS OF LOSS 
for the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002 

 
 
 2003 2002 
   
Revenue  $ 20,215  $ 38,263 
    

Administrative Costs   
Accounting and legal 37,451 82,642 
Advertising and promotion - 114,807 
Amortization 23,709 40,276 
Bank charges and interest 2,616 1,935 
Consulting fees – Note 7 36,063 249,230 
Equipment rental 11,614 15,845 
Filing fees 2,717 1,500 
Investor relations - 101 
Management fees – Note 7 60,000 - 
Office and miscellaneous 20,635 32,617 
Printing and shareholder information 6,083 9,804 
Product advertising - 127,362 
Rent 51,515 55,314 
Repairs and maintenance - 4,709 
Telephone and internet 52,870 50,134 
Transfer agent 8,538 4,745 
Wages – Note 7 62,458 392,103 

    

 376,269 1,183,124 
    

Loss before other items:  ( 356,054)  ( 1,144,861) 
    

Other items:   
Write-off of Siegesoft.com  ( 63,775)  ( 127,548) 
Amortization of Siegesoft Software -  ( 32,285) 
Interest income - 30,437 
Management fee income – Note 7 60,000 - 
Miscellaneous income 169,206 21,764 
Loss on disposition of marketable securities  ( 6,502) - 
Write-off of advances receivable  ( 8,155) - 
Write-down of marketable securities  ( 58,631) - 
Loss on settlement of debt  ( 7,382) - 
Gain on settlement – Note 8 150,000 - 
Loss on write-down of investment in Commerce Resource 
 Corp. 

 
- 

 
 ( 299,043) 

    

 234,761  
    

 
 

…/Cont’d. 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

 INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Continued 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 

STATEMENTS OF LOSS 
for the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002 

 
 
 2003 2002 
   
Loss from continuing operations  ( 121,293)  ( 1,551,536) 
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations – Note 13 - 247,151 
    

Net loss for year $ ( 121,293)  $ ( 1,304,385) 
    

Loss per share from continuing operations  $ ( 0.00)  $ ( 0.03) 
       

Loss per share from discontinued operations  $ -  $ ( 0.01) 
    

Basic and diluted loss per share  $ ( 0.00)  $ ( 0.04) 
    

 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 

STATEMENTS OF DEFICIT 
for the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002 

 
 
 2003 2002 
   
Deficit, beginning of the year  $ ( 8,440,001)  $ ( 6,820,246) 
   
Net loss for the year  ( 121,293)  ( 1,304,385) 
   
Dividends – Note 13 -  ( 315,370) 
       

Deficit, end of the year  $ ( 8,561,294)  $ ( 8,440,001) 
       

 
 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

for the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002 
 
 2003 2002 
Operating Activities:   

Loss from continuing operations for the year  $ ( 121,293)  $ ( 1,551,536) 
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash:   

Amortization 23,709 40,276 
Write-off of Siegesoft.com 63,775 127,548 
Amortization of Siegesoft Software - 32,285 
Loss on disposition of marketable securities 6,502 - 
Write-off of advances receivable 8,155 - 
Write-down of marketable securities 58,631 - 
Loss on settlement of debt 7,392 - 
Gain on settlement   ( 150,000) - 
Loss on write-down of investment in Commerce Resource 
 Corp. 

 
- 

 
299,043 

    

  ( 103,129)  ( 1,052,384) 
Changes in non-cash working capital items related to 
 operations: 

  

Accounts receivable 18,272  ( 5,042) 
Advances receivable  ( 32,535)  ( 70,391) 
Prepaid expenses 2,334 51,159 
Deferred charge -  ( 16,373) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 64,298 42,762 
Advances payable  ( 10,000)  ( 177,184) 
Deposit - 19,945 

    

Cash used in operating activities  ( 60,760)  ( 1,207,508) 
    

Investing Activities:   
Proceeds from disposition of marketable securities 83,622 - 
Acquisition of capital assets  ( 2,781)  ( 14,450) 

    

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 80,841  ( 14,450) 
    

Financing Activities:   
Issue of share capital for cash - 60,000 
Advances from related parties 20,016 208,116 

    

Cash provided by financing activities 20,016 268,116 
    

 
 

…/Cont’d. 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

 INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Continued 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

for the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002 
 
 
 2003 2002 
   
Increase (decrease) in cash during the year from continuing 
 operations 40,097  ( 953,842) 
   
Cash used in discontinued operations – Note 13 -  ( 122,888) 
    

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year 40,097  ( 1,076,730) 
   
Cash, at beginning of year 2,820 1,079,550 
    

Cash, at the end of year  $ 42,917  $ 2,820 
    

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:   
Cash paid for:   

Interest  $ -  $ - 
    

Income taxes  $ -  $ - 
    

 
Supplemental Cash-flow Information – Note 10 
 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

 INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Schedule I 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 

SCHEDULE OF LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
for the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002 

 
 
 2003 2002 
Operating Expenses   

Accounting and legal  $ -  $  27,950 
Advertising and promotion - 64,859 
Amortization - 1,239 
Bank charges and interest - 701 
Consulting fees - 13,285 
Filing fees - 4,302 
Office and miscellaneous - 9,445 
Printing and shareholder information - 12,929 
Rent - 19,563 
Telephone - 755 
Transfer agent - 340 
Travel - 23,818 

    

Loss before other items -  ( 179,186) 
Other items   

Interest income - 4,785 
Property investigation costs -  ( 6,809) 

    

Loss from discontinued operations  $ -  $ ( 181,210) 
    

 



 
INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 

(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

February 28, 2003 and 2002 
 
 
Note 1 Nature and Continuance of Operations  
 

The Company is in the development stage and its common shares are listed on the TSX 
Venture Exchange (“Exchange”). 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable to a going concern, which assume that the Company will 
realize its assets and liabilities in the normal course of business.  Realization values may 
be substantially different from carrying values as shown in these financial statements 
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 
 
As at February 28, 2003, the Company has a working capital deficiency of $66,561 and 
has accumulated losses of $8,561,294 since inception.  The Company’s ability to meets its 
obligations and maintain operations is contingent upon the completion of additional 
financing arrangements and/or attaining future profitable operations or from proceeds from 
the sale of assets. 
 
Effective April 2003, the Company consolidated its share capital on the basis of one new 
share for every thrity old shares and changed its name to International Zimtu Technologies 
Inc. 

 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies  
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles.  Because a precise determination of many assets 
and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the preparation of financial statements for a 
period necessarily involves the use of estimates, which have been made using careful 
judgement.  Actual results could vary from these estimates. 
 
The financial statements, have in management’s opinion, been properly prepared within 
reasonable limits of materiality and within the framework of the significant accounting 
policies summarized below: 

 
a) Marketable Securities 

Marketable securities are carried at the lower of cost and market value.  At February 
28, 2003, the marketable securities had a market value of $512,500. 

 
b) Capital Assets and Amortization 

Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided using the declining 
balance method at the following annual rates: 

 
Furniture and fixtures 20%  
Computer equipment 30%  
Computer software 50% 



 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
February 28, 2003 and 2002 – Page 2 
 

 

 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – (cont'd)  
 

c) Investments 

Investment in companies not subject to significant influence are accounted for using 
the cost method.  If there is a decline in value that is other than temporary, the 
investment will be written-down to provide for the loss. 

 
d) Siegesoft.com 

Siegsoft.com, a website, was recorded at cost and was being amortized over 24 months 
on a straight-line basis.  During the year ended February 28, 2003, the Company 
abandoned its internet business and wrote-off its remaining unamortized costs 
associated with Siegesoft.com. 

 
e) Leases 

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  A lease that transfers substantially 
all the benefit and risks incidental to the ownership of property is classified as a capital 
lease.  At the inception of a capital lease, an asset and an obligation are recorded at an 
amount equal to the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease payment and the 
property’s fair value at the beginning of the lease.  All other leases are accounted for 
as operating leases wherein rental payments are expensed as incurred. 

 
f) Financial Instruments 

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, consisting of cash, 
marketable securities, advances receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 
advances payable and due to related parties approximate their fair value due to the 
short-term maturity of such instruments.  The carrying value of due from related 
parties also approximates fair value.  Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s 
opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks 
arising from these financial instruments. 

 
g) Revenue Recognition 

Software revenue is recognized when the product has been shipped, no significant 
vendor obligations remain and when collection is considered probable. 

 
h) Stock-based Compensation 

The Company has approved a share purchase option plan as detained in Note 6.  No 
compensation expense is recognized for this plan when shares or share purchase 
options are issued to employees and directors.  Any consideration paid by employees 
and directors on the exercise of share purchase options or purchase of shares is 
credited to share capital. 
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – (cont'd)  

 
i) Loss Per Share 

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted earnings per 
share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if potentially dilutive securities 
were exercised or converted to common stock.  The dilutive effect of options and 
warrants and their equivalent is computed by application of the treasury stock method 
and the effect of convertible securities by the “if converted” method.  Fully diluted 
amounts are not presented when the effect of the computations are anti-dilutive due to 
the losses incurred.  Accordingly, there is no difference in the amounts presented for 
basic and diluted loss per share. 

 
j) Income Taxes 

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.  
Under this method, current income taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes 
payable for the current period.  Future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of assets and liabilities 
as well as for the benefit of losses available to be carried forward to future years for 
tax purposes only if it is more likely than not that they can be realized. 

 
Note 3 Capital Assets  
 

  2003   2002 
  Accumulated    
 Cost Amortization Net  Net 

Furniture and fixtures $ 62,284 $ 34,455 $ 27,829  $ 33,592 
Computer equipment 68,056 43,975 24,081  32,313 
Computer software 36,205 36,205 -  6,933 
   

 $ 166,545 $ 114,635 $ 51,910  $ 72,838 
   

 
Note 4 Investment in Commerce Resource Corp. 
 

Investment in Commerce Resource Corp. (“Commerce”) consists of 1,689,001 common 
shares of Commerce representing a 9.1% interest thereof.  As at February 28, 2003, 
900,000 (2002:  1,500,000) of the Commerce shares are held in escrow and are released in 
amounts of 300,000 shares every six months on February 24 and August 24. 
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Note 5 Siegesoft.com 
 

 2003 2002 

Siegesoft.com $ 255,098 $ 255,098 
Accumulated amortization  ( 191,323)  ( 191,323)
Write-off of Siegesoft.com  ( 63,775) - 
   

 $ - $ 63,775 
   

 
Note 6 Share Capital  
 

a) Authorized: 

300,000,000 common shares without par value 
 

b) Issued: Number     $     

Balance, February 28, 2001 23,761,815 8,681,524 
Issued for cash   
– pursuant to an escrow agreement – at $0.01 6,000,000 60,000 
Pursuant to an agreement to issue escrow shares for a
  software acquisition – at $0.01

 
1,500,000 

 
15,000 

       

Balance, February 28, 2002 and 2003 31,261,815 8,756,524 
       

 
c) Escrow  

At February 28, 2003, there are 3,375,000 common shares held in escrow by the 
Company’s transfer agent. 

 
Commitments 

Stock Options 

The Company has a stock option plan which authorizes the board of directors to grant 
shares as incentive stock options to directors, officers and employees all of which vest 
immediately.  The exercise price of the options is determined by the market value of 
the shares at the closing price on the date prior to date of the grant.   
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Note 6 Share Capital – (cont’d) 
 

c) Escrow – (cont’d) 

Commitments – (cont’d) 

Stock Options  – (cont’d) 

During the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002, the changes in stock options 
outstanding are as follows: 

 
 2003 2002 
  Weighted  Weighted 
  Average  Average 
  Exercise  Exercise 
 Shares Price Shares Price 

Outstanding beginning of 
 year 

 
2,200,000 

 
$0.10 

 
2,200,000 

 
$0.10 

Cancelled (1,400,000) $0.10 - - 
Expired (800,000) $0.10 - - 
              

Options outstanding and 
 exercisable at end of year 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2,200,000 

 
$0.10 

              

 
Note 7 Related Party Transactions 
 

During the years ended February 28, 2003 and 2002, the Company incurred the following 
expenses with directors and officers of the Company: 

 
 2003 2002 

Consulting fees  $ 4,000  $ 37,912 
Management fees 60,000 - 
Managemetn fee income (15,000) - 
Wages 51,800 257,000 
   

  $ 100,800  $ 294,912 
   

 
The charges were measured by the exchange amount which is the amount agreed upon by 
the transacting parties. 
 
Amounts due to and from related parties, consisting of advances owing to and from a 
director of the Company and companies with a common director, are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no specific terms of repayment. 



 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
February 28, 2003 and 2002 – Page 6 
 

 

 
Note 8 Gain on Settlement 
 

During the year ended February 28, 2003, the Company received 1,250,000 common 
shares pursuant to a settlement of a claim of $150,000 for amounts due from another 
public company. 

 
Note 9 Commitments 
 

The Company has a lease commitment for its office premises over the next four years as 
follows: 

 
 2004  $ 23,352  
 2005 23,352  
 2006 23,352  
 2007 19,460  
   

   $ 89,516  
   

 
Note 10 Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
 

Non-cash Transactions: 

Investing and financing activities that do not have a direct impact on current cash flows are 
excluded from the cash flow statements.  The following transactions have been excluded 
from the cash flow statements: 

 
During the year ended February 28, 2002: 

– the Company issued 1,500,000 common shares at $0.01 per share for total 
consideration of $15,000 in respect to the acquisition of Siegesoft Software. 

– the Company distributed to its existing shareholders a dividend in kind of 1,000,000 
common shares of Commerce valued at $315,370. 

 
Note 11 Corporation Income Taxes 
 

The Company has accumulated non-capital losses totalling $3,792,928 which are available 
to offset future years’ taxable income.  These losses expire as follows: 
 
 2007  $ 601,026  
 2008 2,154,778  
 2009 1,037,124  
      

   $ 3,792,928  
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Note 11 Corporation Income Taxes – (cont’d) 
 

The Company has accumulated capital losses of $749,922 which are available to offset 
future capital gains. 
 
The Company has accumulated a total of $2,011,753 in Canadian and foreign development 
and exploration expenditures.  This amount is available to carryforward and offset future 
taxable income at various rates per year. 

 
The significant components of the Company’s future income tax assets are as follows: 
 
 2003 2002 

Non-capital losses $ 1,441,313 $ 1,541,066 
Canadian and foreign development and exploration 
 expenditures 

 
764,466 

 
804,701 

Capital loss 284,971 297,368 
    

 2,490,750 2,643,135 
Less:  valuation allowance  ( 2,490,750)  ( 2,643,135) 
    

 $ - $ - 
    

 
The Company has recorded a valuation allowance against its future income tax assets 
based on the extent to which it is not more-likely-than-not that sufficient taxable income 
will not be realized during the carry-forward period to utilize all the future tax assets. 

 
Note 12 Comparative Figures 
 

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year 
presentation. 
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Note 13 Discontinued Operations 

 
On August 15, 2001, the Company disposed of the majority of its interest in Commerce.  
The Company transferred all of its interest in mineral properties and contributed cash in 
exchange for special warrants of Commerce.  Commerce completed its own initial public 
offering (“IPO”) and became a publicly listed company, at which time the special warrants 
were exchanged for 3,000,000 shares of Commerce.  As a result of the offering and other 
financings, the Company’s interest in Commerce was diluted to 32% at the effective date 
of IPO.  Details of the dilution are as follows: 
 
Net Assets of Commerce Resources Corp. at date of dilution  
Cash  $ 122,888 
Other current assets  113,280 
Capital assets, at fair market value  14,289 
Mineral properties and deficient costs, at book value  1,210,748 

   

  1,461,205 
Less:  liabilities  (256,072) 

   

  $ 1,205,133 
   

Pro rata value of interest retained by the Company (32%) $ 387,009 
Value of shares acquired  815,370 
   

Gain on dilution of interest  $ 428,361 
   

 
The results from discontinued operations are summarized as follows.  Results for 2002 are 
for the period March 1, 2002 up to August 15, 2001: 
 
 2003 2002 

General and administrative expenses $ - $ ( 185,994) 
Less:  interest income - 4,784 

       

Loss from operations -  ( 181,210) 
Gain on dilution of interest - 428,361 

       

Earnings from discontinued operations $ - $ 247,151 
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Note 13 Discontinued Operations – (cont’d) 
 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from discontinued operations are as follows.  Results for 2002 are for the 
period March 1, 2002 to August 15, 2001: 
 2003 2002 

Loss from discontinued operations – Schedule I $ - $ ( 181,210) 
Less non-cash item - amortization - 14,289 
Changes in non-cash working capital items consist of:   

Accounts receivable -  ( 42,277) 
Prepaid expenses -  ( 48,000) 
Accounts payable -  ( 8,778) 
Advances payable -  ( 235,858) 
Deposit - 19,945 

    

Cash used in operating activities -  ( 481,889) 
    

Investing activities   
Acquisition and deferred costs of mineral properties -  ( 414,192) 
Acquisition of capital assets -  ( 25,774) 

    

Cash used in investing activities -  ( 439,966) 
    

Financing Activities   
Issue of share capital for cash - 612,458 
Advanced from related parties - 15,000 

    

Cash provided by financing activities - 627,458 
    

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period -  ( 294,397) 
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period - 417,285 
    

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ - $ 122,888 
    

 
Immediately subsequent to the IPO of Commerce, the Company paid a dividend consisting 
of 1,000,000 shares of Commerce having a cost of $315,370.  As a result at the dividend 
date, the Company’s interest in Commerce was further decreased to 13%.  
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Note 14 Subsequent Events 

 
Subsequent to February 28, 2003, the Company: 

a) Consolidated its share capital on the basis of 1 new share for 30 old shares and 
changed its name to International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 

b) The Company granted 100,000 post consolidation share purchase options at $0.40 
each expiring five years from date of the grant and 47,000 post-consolidation share 
purchase options at $0.44 expiring two years from the date of the grant. 

c) Issued 842,886 shares pursuant to a private placement of 842,886 units at $0.23 per 
unit.  Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant 
allowing the holder thereof to purchase one additional common share at $0.30 for a 
period of up to two years. 

d) Agreed to acquire a 100% interest in three mineral properties in the Northwest 
Territories for cash consideration totalling $39,600.  These properties are subject to a 
1% net smelter return royalty and a 1% gross royalty in the event of commercial 
production for diamonds.  The Company may purchase one half of the applicable 
royalty at any time for $500,000.   

e) Arranged a private placement of 350,000 units at $0.50 per unit for total proceeds of 
$175,000.  Each unit will consist of one common share and one common share 
purchase warrant entitling the holder thereof to purchase one common share at $0.75 
for a period of two years.  The placement is subject to regulatory approval. 
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KEVIN HANSON, CA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
 

 
NOTICE TO READER 

 
 
We have compiled the interim balance sheet of International Zimtu Technologies Inc. as at November 

30, 2003 and the interim statements of loss, deficit and cash flows for the three and nine months then 

ended from information provided by management.  We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise 

attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of such information.  Readers are cautioned that these 

statements may not be appropriate for their purposes. 

 
 
Vancouver, Canada “AMISANO HANSON”
January 27, 2004 Chartered Accountants
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SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
INTERIM BALANCE SHEETS 

November 30, 2003 and February 28, 2003 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 

 
 (Unaudited) (Audited) 
 November 30,  February 28, 
 ASSETS 2003 2003 
Current   

Cash   $ 25,823  $ 42,917 
Marketable securities 10 125,010 
Advances receivable  4,620 22,499 
GST receivable  5,065 - 
Prepaid expenses 4,153 6,087 

    

 39,671 196,513 
Capital assets  42,318 51,910 
Due from related parties – Note 7 168,003 76,221 
Investments at cost – Note 4 154,560 141,160 
Investments at equity – Note 5 122,775 - 
    

  $ 527,327  $ 465,804 
    

LIABILITIES 
Current   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 89,057  $ 148,695 
Advances payable 50,179 50,179 
Due to related parties – Note 7 19,945 64,200 

    

 159,181 263,074 
    

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Share capital – Note 6 9,125,013 8,756,524 
Contributed surplus 13,170 7,500 
Deficit  ( 8,770,067)  ( 8,561,294) 
    

 368,146 202,730 
    

  $ 527,327  $ 465,804 
    

 
 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
INTERIM STATEMENTS OF LOSS 

for the three and nine months ended November 30, 2003 and 2002 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 

 
 
 Three months ended  Nine months ended  
 November 30, November 30, 
 2003 2002 2003 2002 
     
Revenue $ - $ - $ - $ 20,215 
             

Administrative Expenses     
Accounting and legal - 5,687 26,240 22,476 
Advertising and promotion - - 2,559 - 
Amortization 3,197 5,836 9,592 17,508 
Bank charges 310 190 1,285 2,300 
Consulting fees  54,952 - 85,652 15,763 
Equipment rental 2,203 3,612 4,957 11,181 
Filing fees (recovered) 1,613  ( 351) 9,653 674 
Interest - - 3,254 - 
Internet access - - - 34,529 
Management fees 15,000 15,000 45,000 45,000 
Non-cash compensation charge - - 5,670 - 
Office and miscellaneous 696 9,133 13,446 20,868 
Printing and shareholder information
 (recovered) 

 
 ( 887)

 
- 

 
10,004 

 
5,112 

Rent 9,352 20,497 15,325 57,156 
Repairs and maintenance 1,674 - 2,478 - 
Telephone 2,318 1,676 5,744 2,255 
Transfer agent 5,614 3,161 13,083 7,273 
Travel (recovered)  ( 9,621) - 4,443 - 
Wages – Note 7 19,500 20,876 62,162 109,723 

             

 105,921 85,317 320,547 351,818 
Less:  expenses recovered -  ( 46,400) -  ( 267,210)
             

  ( 105,921) 38,917  ( 320,547) 84,608 
             

Loss before other items:  ( 105,921)  ( 38,917)  ( 320,547)  ( 64,393)
             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

…/Cont’d. 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

 INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Continued 
INTERIM STATEMENTS OF LOSS 

for the three and nine months ended November 30, 2003 and 2002 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 

 
 
 Three months ended  Nine months ended  
 November 30, November 30, 
 2003 2002 2003 2002 
     
Loss before other items: 
 (carried forward) 

 
- 

 
 ( 38,917)

 
- 

 
 ( 64,393)

Other items:     
Other income 62,048 - 72,284 7,477 
Gain on sale of marketable securities 20,351 - 28,266 18,468 
Amortization of Siegesoft.com -  -  ( 63,775)
Write-down of marketable securities - - -  ( 27,631)
Loss on settlement of debt - - -  ( 7,382)
Management fee income – Note 6 12,000 - 36,000 - 
Gain on sale of resource property 27,600 - 41,400 - 
Gain on sale of investment of 
 Commerce Resources 

 
- 

 
- 

 
3,430 

 
- 

Interest income 21 - 952 - 
Gain on settlement of contingency - - - 150,000 
Equity share of investment losses  ( 70,528) -  ( 70,528) - 

             

Net income (loss) for the period $ ( 54,429) $ ( 38,917) $ ( 208,743) $ 12,764 
             

Basic and diluted income (loss) per 
 share 

 
$ ( 0.03)

 
$ ( 0.00)

 
$ ( 0.10)

 
$ 0.00 

             

 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
INTERIM STATEMENTS OF DEFICIT 

for the nine months ended November 30, 2003 and 2002 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 

 
 
 2003 2002 
   
Deficit, beginning of the period  $ ( 8,561,294)  $ ( 8,440,001) 
   
Net income (loss) for the period  ( 208,743) 12,764 
       

Deficit, end of the period  $ ( 8,770,037)  $ ( 8,427,237) 
       

 
 



 

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 

INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

for the three and nine months ended November 30, 2003 and 2002 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 

 
 
 Three months ended  Nine months ended  
 November 30, November 30, 
 2003 2002 2003 2002 
Operating Activities:     

Net income (loss) for the period 
 from continuing operations 

 
$ ( 54,429)

 
$ ( 38,917)

 
$ ( 208,743)

 
$ 12,764 

Add (deduct) items not involving 
 cash: 

    

Amortization 3,197 5,836 9,592 17,508 
Non cash compensation - - 5,670 - 
Amortization of Siegesoft.com - - - 63,775 
Amortization of Siegesoft 
 Software 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Gain on settlement of contingency - - -  ( 150,000)
Loss on settlement of debt - - - 7,382 
Write-down of marketable 
 securities 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
27,631 

Gain on sale of resource property  ( 27,600) -  ( 41,400) - 
Less:  non-cash consideration - -  ( 10,000) - 
Gain on sale of Commerce 
 Resources 

 
- 

 
- 

 
 ( 3,430)

 
- 

Gain on sale of marketable 
 securities 

 
 ( 20,351)

 
- 

 
 ( 28,266)

 
 ( 18,468)

Equity share of investment losses 
 – Note 5 

 
70,528 

 
- 

 
70,528 

 
- 

   

  ( 28,655)  ( 33,081)  ( 206,049)  ( 39,408)
Changes in non-cash working capital
 items related to operations: 

    

Accounts receivable  ( 336) -  ( 5,065) 31,864 
Advances receivable  ( 4,500)  ( 5,249) 17,879  ( 19,752)
Prepaid expenses and deposits 311 512 1,934 1,537 
Advances payable -  ( 10,000) -  ( 10,000)
Accounts payable  ( 2,747) 6,188  ( 59,638)  ( 17,710)

   

  ( 35,927)  ( 41,630)  ( 250,939)  ( 53,469)
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

…/Cont’d. 
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 INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Continued 
INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

for the three and nine months ended November 30, 2003 and 2002 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 

 
 
 Three months ended  Nine months ended  
 November 30, November 30, 
 2003 2002 2003 2002 
     
Investing Activities:     

Proceeds from sale of investment in 
 Commerce Resources Corp. 

 
- 

 
- 

 
11,030 

 
- 

Proceeds from sale of resource 
 property 

 
34,000 

 
- 

 
51,000 

 
- 

Investments  ( 168,103) -  ( 194,303) - 
Proceeds from sale of marketable 
 securities 

 
30,951 

 
- 

 
153,266 

 
35,592 

Acquisition resource properties - -  ( 39,600) - 
   

  ( 103,152) -  ( 18,607) 35,592 
   

Financing Activities:     
Issue of share capital for cash 194,626 - 388,489 - 
Share subscriptions  ( 39,793) - - - 
Advances from (repayment to) 
 related parties 

 
2,805 

 
37,600 

 
 ( 136,037)

 
16,753 

   

 157,638 37,600 252,452 16,753 
   

Increase (decrease) in cash for the 
 period  

 
18,559 

 
 ( 4,030)

 
 ( 17,094)

 
 ( 1,124)

     
Cash, beginning of period 7,264 5,726 42,917 2,820 
   

Cash, end of period $ 25,823 $ 1,696 $ 25,823 $ 1,696 
   

Supplemental disclosure of cash 
 flow information: 

    

Cash paid for:     
Interest  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 

             
Income taxes  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 

             
 
Non-cash Transactions – Note 9 
 



 INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. Schedule I 
(formerly Zimtu Technologies Inc.) 

INTERIM SCHEDULE OF RESOURCE PROPERTIES 
for the nine months ended November 30, 2003 

(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 
 
 
 Allan Lake Frank Murray  
 Claims Claims Claims Totals 
     
Acquisition costs, beginning of 
period 

 
 $ - 

 
 $ - 

 
 $ - 

 
 $ - 

             

Acquisition costs – cash 13,200 13,200 13,200 39,600 
Proceeds on option agreement:     
Cash  ( 17,000)  ( 17,000)  ( 17,000)  ( 51,000) 
Special warrants  ( 10,000)  ( 10,000)  ( 10,000)  ( 30,000) 
Realized gain 13,800 13,800 13,800 51,400 

   

Acquisition costs, end of the period  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
   

 

 



INTERNATIONAL ZIMTU TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

November 30, 2003  
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 

 
 
Note 1 Interim Reporting  
 

While the information presented in the accompanying interim nine month financial 
statements is unaudited, it includes all adjustments which are, in the opinion of 
management, necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and 
cash flows for the interim period presented.  These interim financial statements follow the 
same accounting policies and methods of their application as the Company’s February 28, 
2003 financial statements except as disclosed in Note 2.  It is suggested that these interim 
financial statements be read in conjunction with the company’s February 28, 2003 annual 
financial statements. 

 
Note 2 Changes in Accounting Policies 

 
Resource Properties  

The Company defers the cost of acquiring, maintaining its interest, exploring and 
developing mineral properties until such time as the properties are placed into production, 
abandoned, sold or considered to be impaired in value.  Costs of producing properties will 
be amortized on a unit of production basis and costs of abandoned properties are written-
off.  Proceeds received on the sale of interests in mineral properties are credited to the 
carrying value of the mineral properties, with any excess included in operations.  Write-
downs due to impairment in value are charged to operations. 

 
Management reviews the carrying value of mineral properties on a periodic basis and will 
recognize impairment in value based upon current exploration results, the prospect of 
further work being carried out by the Company, the assessment of future probability of 
profitable revenues from the property or from the sale of the property.  Amounts shown for 
properties represent costs incurred net of write-downs and recoveries, and are not intended 
to represent present or future values. 

 
Note 3 Resource Properties – Notes 5 and 7 
 

During the period ended November 30, 2003, the Company acquired a 100% interest in 
three mineral properties known as the Allan Lake Claims, Frank Claims and Murray 
Claims located in the Northwest Territories for cash consideration totalling $13,200 each.  
These properties are subject to a 1% gross royalty in the event of commercial production 
for diamonds.  The Company may purchase one-half of the applicable royalty at any time 
for $500,000. 
 
The Company separately granted an option on each property to three related companies 
whereby each can acquire a 70% interest in the property in consideration for cash, 
exploration expenditures to be incurred and/or an equity interest in the private company 
Note 5. 

 



 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
Notes to the Interim Financial Statements 
November 30, 2003 – Page 2 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 
 
 
Note 4 Investments at Cost 

 
 (Unaudited)  
 November 30, February 28, 
 2003 2003 

Commerce Resources Corp.  $ 133,560  $ 141,160 
Golden River Resources Corp. 21,000 - 
       

  $ 154,560  $ 141,160 
       

 
The Company has, subject to regulatory approval, entered into an agreement dated October 
31, 2003 with a non-related public company to sell all of its interest in Golden River 
Resources Corp., a private company, in exchange for 500,000 shares of the public 
company.  
 

Note 5 Investment at Equity – Notes 3 and 7 
 
 November 30, 2003 
 (Unaudited) 
  Equity Share  
 At Cost of Losses Net 

Solex Gold Corp.  $ 57,501  $ ( 26,047)  $ 31,454
Evolving Gold Corp. 54,501  ( 17,019) 37,482
Providence Diamond Corp. 81,301  ( 27,402) 53,839
          

  $ 193,303  $ ( 70,528)  $ 122,775
          

 
Solex Gold Corp. 

During the nine months ended November 30, 2003, the Company incorporated Solex Gold 
Corp. (“Solex”), a wholly owned private company, and granted Solex an option to acquire 
a 70% interest in the Allan Lake Property (Note 3) for consideration of $17,000 cash, 
exploration expenditures of $250,000 over three years and 200,000 special warrants at a 
fair value of $0.05 per special warrant. In addition the Company purchased a further 
400,000 special warrants at $0.01 per special warrant and 870,000 special warrants at 
$0.05 per special warrant. The total special warrants held are 1,470,000 special warrants 
for $57,500 including those acquired with the option proceeds which, after conversion 
represents a 38% interest. These special warrants will be converted into common shares 
for no additional consideration within 5 days of Solex going public. The Company’s 
interest will be further diluted after Solex completes its public offering. 
 

 



 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
Notes to the Interim Financial Statements 
November 30, 2003 – Page 3 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 
 

 
Note 5 Investment at Equity – (cont’d) 

 
Providence Diamond Corp. 

During the nine months ended November 30, 2003, the Company incorporated Providence 
Gold Corp. (“Providence”), a wholly owned private company, and granted Providence an 
option to acquire a 70% interest in the Frank Property (Note 3) for consideration of 
$17,000 cash, exploration expenditures of $250,000 over three years and 200,000 special 
warrants at a fair value of $0.05 per special warrant.  In addition the Company purchased a 
further 380,000 special warrants at $0.01 per special warrant and 1,350,000 special 
warrants at $0.05 per special warrant. The total special warrants held are 1,930,000 special 
warrants for $81,300 including those acquired with the option proceeds which, after 
conversion represents a 44% interest. These special warrants will be converted into 
common shares for no additional consideration within 5 days of Providence going public. 
The Company’s interest will be further diluted after Providence completes its public 
offering. 
 
Evolving Gold Corp. 

During the nine months ended November 30, 2003, the Company incorporated Evolving 
Gold Corp. (“Evolving”), a wholly owned private company, and granted Evolving an 
option to acquire a 70% interest in the Murray Property (Note 3) for consideration of 
$17,000 cash, exploration expenditures of $250,000 over three years and 200,000 special 
warrants at a fair value of $0.05 per special warrant. In addition the Company purchased a 
further 400,000 special warrants at $0.01 per special warrant and 810,000 special warrants 
at $0.05 per special warrant.  The total special warrants held are 1,410,000 special 
warrants for $54,500 including those acquired with the option proceeds which, after 
conversion represents a 26% interest. These special warrants will be converted into 
common shares for no additional consideration within 5 days of Evolving going public. 
The Company’s interest will be further diluted after Evolving completes its public 
offering. 

 



 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
Notes to the Interim Financial Statements 
November 30, 2003 – Page 4 
(Unaudited – See Notice to Reader) 
 
 
Note 6 Share Capital 
 

(a) Authorized: 

300,000,000 common shares without par value 
 

 2003 2002 
(b) Issued: Number     $     Number     $     

Balance, beginning of the 
 period 

 
31,261,815 

 
8,756,524 

 
31,261,815 

 
8,756,524 

Pursuant to a 1 new for 30 
 old share consolidation 

 
(30,219,755)

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Issued for cash:     
– pursuant to a private 

 placement – at $0.23 
 

842,886 
 

193,863 
 

- 
 

- 
– pursuant to private 

 placement – at $0.50 
 

254,252 
 

127,126 
 

- 
 

- 
Less:  finders fee - (5,600) - - 

– pursuant to exercise of 
 warrants – at $0.30 

 
37,000 

 
11,100 

 
- 

 
- 

– pursuant to exercise of 
 warrants – at $0.75 

 
8,000 

 
6,000 

 
- 

 
- 

– pursuant to exercise of 
 options – at $0.40 

 
90,000 

 
36,000 

 
- 

 
- 

    

Balance, end of the period 2,274,198 9,125,013 31,261,815 8,756,524 
    

 
(c) Escrow: 

At November 30, 2003, there are 37,500 common shares held in escrow by the 
company’s transfer agent. 

 



 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
Notes to the Interim Financial Statements 
November 30, 2003 – Page 5 
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Note 6 Share Capital – (cont’d) 
 

(e) Commitments: – (cont’d) 

Share Purchase Options 

The Company has a share purchase option plan, which authorizes the board of 
directors to grant shares as incentive share purchase options to directors, officers and 
employees.  The exercise price of the options is determined by the fair market value of 
the shares at the closing price on the date prior to date of the grant, all of which vest 
immediately.   
 
During the period ended November 30, 2003, the change in share purchase options 
outstanding is as follows: 
 
 November 30, 2003 
  Weighted 
  Average 
 Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding and exercisable at beginning of period - - 
Granted 147,000 $0.41 
Exercised 90,000 $0.40 
    

Options outstanding and exercisable at end of period 57,000 $0.43 
    

 
As at November 30, 2003, share purchase options outstanding and exercisable to 
directors and employees are as follows: 

 
 Number Exercise Expiry  
 of Shares Price Date  

 10,000 $0.40 April 28, 2008  
 47,000 $0.44 June 17, 2005  
     

 57,000    
     

 

 



 
International Zimtu Technologies Inc. 
Notes to the Interim Financial Statements 
November 30, 2003 – Page 6 
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Note 6 Share Capital – (cont’d) 
 

(e) Commitments: – (cont’d) 

Share Purchase Options – (cont’d) 

The compensation charge of $5,670 associated with a consultant’s options has been 
recorded in the financial statements.  The compensation charge associated with 
directors’ and employee options in the amount of $40,200 is not recognized in the 
financial statements, but included in the pro-forma amounts below.  The fair value of 
the stock-based compensation has been determined, using the Black-Scholes option 
pricing model with the following assumptions: 

Expected dividend yield 0.0% 
Expected volatility 122% 
Risk-free interest rate 2.25% 
Weighted average expected term in years 3.35 years 

 
The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective 
assumptions including the expected price volatility.  Changes in the subjective input 
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate and therefore the Black-
Scholes model does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value 
of the Company’s share purchase options. 

 
Had compensation cost associated with director and employee options been 
determined based on fair value at the grant date, pro-forma loss and loss per share 
would have been as follows: 

Net loss  $ ( 239,093) 
Pro-forma compensation cost   ( 40,200) 
     

Pro-forma net loss  $ ( 279,293) 
     

Pro-forma net loss per share  $ ( 0.12) 
     

 
Share Purchase Warrants 

At November 30, 2003, the Company has the following common share purchase 
warrants outstanding: 

 
 Number Exercise Price Expiry Date  

 434,147 $0.30 June 11, 2005  
 408,738 $0.30 July 16, 2005  
 246,252 $0.75 October 22, 2005  
       

 1,059,138    
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Note 7 Related Party Transactions – Notes 3 and 5 
 

The Company incurred the following with a director of the Company and with companies 
having common directors: 

 Three months ended Nine months ended 
 November 30,  November 30, 
 2003 2002 2003 2002 

Management fees $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 45,000 $ 45,000
Wages 19,500 9,600 58,500 28,900
Management fee income  ( 12,000) -  ( 36,000) -
   

 $ 22,500 $ 24,600 $ 67,500 $ 73,800
   

 
The Company granted an option to acquire an interest in its mineral properties to related 
companies as disclosed in Notes 3 and 5. 
 
These items were measured by the exchange amount which is the amount agreed upon by 
the transacting parties. 

 
Amounts due to and from related parties, consisting of advances owing from and to 
directors of the Company and companies with a common director, are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no specific terms of repayment. 

 
Note 8 Subsequent Events 
 

Subsequent to November 30, 2003, the Company,  

a) granted incentive stock options to directors and a consultant, subject to the TSX 
Venture exchange approval, for the purchase of up to 176,000 common shares at $0.72 
per share exercisable to December 30, 2005;  

b) issued 65,000 shares pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants at $0.75 per 
share;  and 

c) announced a private placement of up to 110,000 units at $0.90 per unit for total gross 
proceeds of $99,000. The units will consist of one common share of the Company and 
one non-transferable share purchase warrant. Each share purchase warrant will entitle 
the holder to purchase one common share of the Company at $1.10 per share for a 
period of two years. 
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Note 9 Non-Cash Transaction 
 

Investing and financing activities that do not have an impact on current cash flows are 
excluded from the statement of cash flows. The following transaction has been excluded: 
 
During the period ended November 30, 2003, the Company received 600,000 special 
warrants (Note 5) valued at $30,000 as partial consideration pursuant to three property 
option agreements. 
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